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Introduction

The information in this catalogue is based in part on a photo album compiled for the Government House Committee by successive
researchers over the course of several decades. It also includes a number of ‘new’ images gleaned from the Public Archives and
Records Office (PARQO) in Charlottetown, Library and Archives Canada (LAC) in Ottawa, the Confederation Centre Art Gallery in
Charlottetown, the McCord Museum in Montreal, the Reginald Porter Collection, the Prince Edward Island Public Library, and
several online sources including Vintage Charlottetown and Historical PEI. It is divided into four sections, each of which deals with a
different theme: (1) maps and charts of Government House and its grounds, (2) interior images of Government House, (3)
paintings, sketches, and engravings of the House’s exterior and its grounds, and (4) photographs of the House’s exterior and its
grounds. Within each section, images are organised chronologically. Each entry includes a reference number with the prefix ‘GH’,
an image’s reference information, a short description, and notes that point out interesting features and cross-reference the image
with others in the catalogue. Although copyright has expired on many of the images contained herein, their rights remain
reserved by the institutions that hold them. Some images remain under copyright foday. Please do not reproduce any image from
this catalogue without the express consent of the individual or organisation holding rights thereto.

This project has been a learning experience from the start. Over the course of the past six months, | have gained a new
appreciation of — and fondness for — Government House and its grounds. It is a place awash in the history of this island. Its
fortunes have ebbed and flowed over the years, but it has survived — often in the face of long odds. Events from Confederation to
the First World War and the Great Depression have each played their role in its evolution and are evident in the images that
follow. The House and its grounds continue to change with the times, generating much debate among the many specialists who
have studied it over the years. This catalogue is meant to inform these debates, not conclude them. | welcome all criticism and
trust that those follow me will continue to question every theory and probe every fact.

This catalogue was the made possible by the leadership of the Government House Committee and the generous financial support
of the PEI2014 Fund. It would never have even begun without the many years of excellent work done by Reginald Porter and
many other dedicated historians, including Catherine Hennessey, Ruth MacKenzie, Trude Oliver, Irene Rogers, Dr. C.W.J. Eliot, and
James MacNutt.  Special thanks must also go to the good people at the PEl Provincial Archives and Records Office, who scanned
many dozen images and were always on hand with good advice and a friendly smile. Their dedication to preserving the Island’s
past makes the historian’s job possible. Finally, thanks to Paige Matthie — my best friend and partner — for putting up with my
ranting, providing me with beautiful scans of the Confederation Centre Art Gallery’s collection, and keeping me watered and very
well fed.

Richard Campanaro

Charlottetown
August 2014
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1. Charts & Maps
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GH 1

Detail of Chart of Hillsborough Bay

Date of Original 1839

Medium Copperplate engraving

Dimensions 76x54.5 cm

Artist/Photographer  George Wright

Source PARO

Accession Number Map0484

Inscription Various
Description

A detail of a larger chart showing
the approaches to Charlottetown
Harbour via Hillsborough Bay. It
includes navigational instructions for
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use when entering and exiting the
Harbour. These include depth
soundings, navigational ranges, and
important landmarks.  The original
500 lots of the town are clearly
visible. A legend on the right explain
the system of buoys and ranges.

Notes

This early chart of Hillsborough Bay
and Charlottetown Harbour provides
important information about the

4

placement and visibility of
Government House only five years
after its construction in 1834.

GH1la. This tiny detail from GHI1 is
probably the earliest extant image of
Government House. Likely drawn
while the House was being built, it
shows a central portico but no
verandas. The scale is so tiny that one
can scarcely expect that the




verandas will be shown. (For further argument, see Eliot, GH1b. This is a detail of the larger chart's bibliographical

C.W.J. and Reginald Porter, “The Changing Face of Fanning information, not included in the detail of GH1. Note that the
Bank,” The Island Magazine, Number 29, Spring/Summer chart was published only four years after the construction of
1991, pp. 29-33.) To assist navigation before the harbour Government House, and was likely made several years
had beacons, various sightings were taken on prominent earlier.

landmarks or buildings. Government House was one of these
landmarks. This explains the meridian line running through
the building.

GHl1a.

GH1b.
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GH 2

Barnstaple map of Charlottetown

Date of Original
Medium
Dimensions
Artist/Photographer

September 1841
Ink on Paper
13x22 cm

A. Rowe Barnstaple

Source LAC

Accession Number NMC - 000423

Inscription Various
Description

This reproduction of A.R. Barnstaple’s
Plan of Charlottetown shows a view of
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Government House and grounds. It gives
the general floor plan of Government
House — with two wings and a yard. The
Fish Pond — later Government Pond — is
clearly labeled in the lower right.

Notes

Unlike other maps and charts of the
period, GH2 presents a highly stylised
plan of Government House and Farm.

Despite its inaccuracies the map is filled
with many interesting details, including
paths running over the area depicted.
Note also a rectangular feature to the
west of the House. This sits more or less
where the original flower garden was
located. Government House Farm is
heavily foreshortened, and appears
much smaller than its original 100 acres.




Chart of Hillsborough Bay

GH 3

Date of Original 1842 (revised 1881)

Medium Paper map on frame

Dimensions 38 x 24 in.

Artist/Photographer HW Bayfield, J.
Orlebar, GA Bedford

Source PARO, Island
Imagined Collection

Accession Number Map 21

Inscription Various

Description
A detailed survey chart of
Hillsborough Bay and Charlottetown

Harbour, including soundings (in feet),
stippling, and relief. The legend includes
information about buoys and lights.
Maijor roads and landmarks are drawn.
Three shore views are illustrated in the
upper right.

Notes

This chart is a later edition of GH2 and
includes a number of important new

7

additions to  the  Charlottetown
waterfront (including the construction of
the  railway bridge over the
Hillsborough River). The middle shore
view — looking north into the harbour
from a point off Holland Cove in
Hillsborough Bay - indicates
Government House as a key landmark
for ships coming into port.
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GH3a. Detail of illustration B on GH3, showing the north shore
of Charlottetown Harbour from a point off Holland Cove,

indicating Government House as a major navigational
landmark.
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Detail of Chart of Charlottetown Harbour |

GH 4

Date of Original May 12, 1845
Medium Copperplate
engraving
Dimensions Microfiche
Artist/Photographer HW Bayfield, J.
Orlebar, G. Bedford
Source LAC
Accession Number NMC164294
Inscription b.r. ‘J&C Walker,
sculpt.’
Description

This chart illustrates the topography
and bathymetry of Charlottetown
Harbour, as well as the grid layout of
Charlottetown itself. It clearly shows

the location of Government House,
labelled ‘G’, and the undeveloped
condition of Government House Farm.
Fort Edward and the George Battery
are also shown.

Notes

This chart detail gives a very clear
indication of the property set aside by
Governor Fanning for the location of
Government House. The notable
topography of the site explains where
the property gets its name, “Fanning
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Bank”. Note the tiny illustration of the
Kirk of St. James with its unadorned,
pre-1850 tower. (See GH37) Compare
with GH10, GH14, and GH18 to follow
the evolution of Government House
Farm into Victoria Park. It is interesting
to note the location of Government
House — on an exposed elevation
overlooking the harbour with a clear
bias towards bringing the outside ‘in’.
This design sensibility reflects an
aesthetic philosophy that was
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very different from the inward-looking design of Government

with relatively few public buildings of note. Note the extensive
House in Halifax, built thirty years earlier.

topography of Charlottetown, the Commons, and the Royalties.

GH4a. This larger detail of Bayfield, Orlebar, & Bedford’s GH4b. Detail of the legend attached to the full 1845 chart,
1845 chart illustrates the city of Charlottetown in its early days, including a key to identified listed landmarks.
GH4a. GH4b.
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Wright Plan of Government House Farm

GH 5

Date of Original
Medium
Dimensions
Artist/Photographer
Source

Accession Number
Inscription

December 1847

Ink drawing

11 x 17 in.

G. Wright

PARO

Map 9640

“Plan/of /Government
House Farm/in/Prince
Edward

Island /Surveyed by /G.

Wright Surveyor
General/in
December/1847”

Description

An ink plan of Government House and
Government Farm on plain  paper
showing the placement of buildings and
laneways, as well as the division of the
fields, their acreage, progress in clearing
land, vegetation, buildings and layout of
the grounds including detailed garden
plans.

Notes
This is the earliest known map of the
Government Farm, and provides

11

important information about the initial
layout of the property. This includes the
amount of acreage under cultivation,
stumps, and left wild. It also indicates
the position of woodland, the location
and orientation of pathways, and the
situation of Fort Edward. There is not
yet any sign of the Marine Hospital that
would sit on the  westernmost
promontory of the Farm after 1851.
(See GH7) Note the presence of Dead
Man’s Pond, already a well-defined
feature at the centre of the Farm.
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5a. This detail shows the grounds of Government House,
providing information on the layout of the grounds and gardens.
Note the private enclosure at the lower left corner of the formal
gardens, likely already a personal retreat as labelled in the
later Daly plan (GH7).  Note also the extension at the rear of

5a.
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the west wing. This contained the icehouse and summer dairy
(See GH19) and was removed before or during the extensive
renovations of 1917. (See GH112 to GH119)

5b. Detail of GH5 listing the acreage of each lettered field.

5b.




Daly Garden Plan, 1856

GH 6

Date of Original
Medium
Dimensions
Artist/Photographer

Source

Accession Number
Inscription

May 15, 1856

Pen and or pencil
18.8 x 22.9 cm
Probably member of
the Daly family
Confederation Centre
Art Gallery

CAG 69.27

All plants are
labelled. ‘May 15
1856’

Description

An ink and pencil plan on plain paper
outlining the arrangement of the formal
flower gardens at Government House.
The flowing penmanship is difficult to
decipher (see GH5a below). The plan is
dated May 15™ 1856.

13

Notes

Drawn by a member of the Daly family
during Sir Dominick Daly’s residence at
Government House (1854-1857), this is
an absolutely vital document in the
study of how the flower garden at
Government House evolved over time. It
includes a sketch of the formal gardens
and the locations of plantings
throughout. Note the location of the
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arbour — a key feature in formal gardens of the period. Note
also the space’s characteristically cruciform layout. The private
area in the southwest corner of the formal garden — labelled in
GHS5 and GH7 — is not indicated in this plan.
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6a. At the request of Reg Porter, Gilbert Hughes prepared the
following transcript of all the plant names that could be read.

6a.
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Daly plan of Government Farm 1856

GH 7

Date of Original
Medium

Dimensions
Artist/Photographer
Source

Accession Number
Inscription

1856

Ink and watercolour
wash

29.2x44.1 cm.

Not identified
Confederation Centre
Art Gallery

CAG 69.15.5
“Government
Farm/Prince Edward
Island/1856”. Also
legend and key.

Description

This coloured plan illustrates the layout
of fields and buildings across
Government House Farm. Government
House is visible on the right, alongside
its various outbuildings. A structure —
presumably the Marine Hospital seen in
GH10 - sits on the Farm’s western
promontory.
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Notes

Note the growth in the woodlands
edging Government Farm — particularly
at the West end of the property — and
the construction of the Marine Hospital in
1851 (See GH10). Unfortunately, no
legend is available for the lettered
labels marking the fields of the
Government Farm. This map was
prepared during the Governorship of
Sir Dominick Daly (1854-1857).
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7a. Detail of Government House (1) and its immediate
grounds, including the poultry house (2), the yard (3), the
formal garden (4), J&C’s garden (5) [see below], the coach
house & outhouses (6), the bathing house (7), the guardhouse
(?), and pathways. Note the wooded areas on either side of
the yard, particularly those between the House and formal
gardens. These were replaced by carpet bedding by 1873.

7a.

(See GH9) ltem 5 — ‘J&C’s garden’ — likely refers to Joanna
and Caroline Daly (the Lt. Governor’'s daughters) who also
occupied the front room upstairs. (See GH5 and GH20) Note
that it occupies the best vantage point from which to observe
the harbour.

7b. Detail of the legend on GH7.
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7b.
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Detail of Chart of the Hillsborough River From Charlottetown to its Head

GH 8

Date of Original
Medium

Dimensions
Artist/Photographer

Source
Accession Number
Inscription

1866

Copperplate
engraving

20.2 x 28.9 cm

HW Bayfield, J.
Orlebar, G. Bedford
LAC

NMC 188489

b.r. ‘Maltby & Sons’

Description

A detail from the Admiralty’s 1866 chart
of the Hillsborough River, showing the
location of Government House at the
extreme left, Province House at the
extreme right, and the barracks at
bottom. Limited topographical
information is  given about the
Government House farm through shaded
relief and stippling.

17

Notes

Although published by the Admiralty in
1866, with magnetic variation indicated
for that year, this chart is based on the
earlier 1843-44 survey by Bayfield,
Orlebar, and Bedford. Government
House and its flagpole are noted as
important landmarks for navigation.
The Kirk of St. James is indicated by a
cross, and St. Dunstan’s is indicated by
lettering.
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GH9

Ball Plan for Government Farm and City Park

Date of Original June 2 1873

Medium Ink and wash on glazed
cotton

Dimensions 35 mm slide

Artist/Photographer John Ball, Surveyor

Source PARO

Accession Number 2755/153

Inscription “Plan/of /Government

Farm/and/City Park
etc.”
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Description

The plan shows the arrangement at
Government House and Farm, the
original configuration of Government
Pond, with bridges at Kent and Brighton
Roads and the Terrace. The latter
became the Park Roadway in 1896-7.

18

Notes

Prior to 1873 there was no public park
in Charlottetown, and this survey by
John Ball is in preparation for the
establishment of Victoria Park as a
public “pleasure ground” on 40 acres
of land granted to the City by Lt. Gov.
Robinson. This plan marks the shift from
colonial-era farm to post-confederation




park. See GH85 for a contemporaneous photograph. Note that
behind the House, new flowerbeds typical of 1860’s trends in
carpet bedding take up space between the building and the
formal garden — previously identified as woodland.

9a. Detail of GH8 showing Government House and its
immediate surroundings. The crooked line to the West of the
House and the rectangular outline inked in to the East likely date
from the World War | era, when a location for building a

9a.

19

hospital was being decided upon. The rectangular outline east
of the House matches the location of what became the Rena
Maclean Memorial Hospital and, later, the Prince Edward
Island Agricultural and Technical School. See GH15 for a
detailed plan of the 1917 renovations and the hospital
building. Compare with GH7a to track changes between 1856
and 1873, including the replacement of GH7’s wooded copses
on either side of the yard with GH9’s carpet bedding.
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GH 10

Detail of Chart of Charlottetown Harbour Il

Date of Original
Medium

Dimensions
Artist/Photographer

Source
Accession Number
Inscription

23 June 1869
Copperplate
engraving
Microfiche

HW Bayfield, J.
Orlebar, G. Bedford
LAC

NMC188484

b.l. “VIII [18]69’, b.r.
‘J&C Walker, sculpt.’
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Description

This chart illustrates the topography and
bathymetry of Charlottetown Harbour in
1869, including the grid layout of
Charlottetown. Government House s
labelled ‘G’, and the Marine Hospital
has been built at the westernmost
promontory of Government House Farm.

20

Notes

This detail illustrates the few changes to
Government House farm prior to the
Island’s entry into Confederation and Lt.
Gov. Robinson’s grant of land to the
City of Charlottetown. Compare with
GH4, GH14 and GH18 to follow the
evolution of Government House farm.
Note that the Kirk’s illustration has not
been updated from GH4. Note also the
Marine Hospital visible at the west end
of the Farm — built in 1851 to house
quarantined travellers arriving by boat.




Detail of Panoramic Map of Charlottetown

GH 11

Date of Original 1878

Medium Lithograph
Dimensions 52x71 cm
Artist/Photographer  Albert Ruger
Source PARO
Accession Number Map 0,396
Inscription b. ‘Charlottetown/

Prince Edward
Island /1878’

Description
This detail shows Government House (1), its
farm and grounds, and the first 40

acres of Victoria Park (‘21'). Government
House is clearly visible as are its
outbuildings, formal gardens and the looping
paths that crisscross the Park. The Park Lake
is visible in the centre left.

Notes

Victoria Park sits on 56 acres of what used
to be Government House Farm. Lt. Gov.
Robinson granted the first 40 acres on 14
June 1873. Sources indicate that the
remaining 16 acres — comprising Fort
Edward and the fields closest to Government
House — were transferred to the city after

21

1905. If so, this explains the absence of
park development on the East side of the
path that runs south from Brighton Road to
Ft. Edward — closely following the path of
today’s Park Driveway. Note the absence
of Ft. Edward, which continued to be
operated by the Prince Edward Island
militia until the early 20t century.

For more on panoramic images in the 19t
century, see H. Holman, ‘Panorama for
Sale’, The Island Magazine, No.24
(Fall/Winter 1988) pp. 14-18.
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GH 12

Detail of Map of the City of Charlottetown

Date of Original 1880

Medium Printed in The Illustrated
Atlas of the Province of
PEl by J. Meacham.

Dimensions 39x65.5 cm
Artist/Photographer  C.R. Allen

Source PARO

Accession Number Map 214552
Inscription Map of the City of /

Charlottetown/PEI
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Description

This detail shows Government House and its
grounds shortly before 1880. Government
House and its numerous outbuildings are
visible in the centre, and Victoria Park —
with parade and cricket grounds — is
labelled on the left.

Notes

Originally published in J. Meacham’s 1880
lllustrated Atlas of the Province of PEl. Note
the division of Victoria Park from

22

Government Farm along the line of the
Park Driveway. Note also the size of the
proposed Park Lake — shown here as much
larger than bodies of water seen in other
representations. (See GH11, GH14, GH15,
and GH18) Only the lake shown in GH15
resembles the body of water shown here.
Note also that the pathways differ from
those in GH11 — the only contemporaneous
overview available.




Victoria Park Roadway

GHI13

Date of Original
Medium
Dimensions
Artist/Photographer
Source

Accession Number
Inscription

1896

Ink on Paper

71x55 cm

Thomas W. May
PARO

Map 0,396

u.l. ‘Plan showing the
northern boundary
line of the Victoria
Park Roadway as

surveyed by Thomas
W. May LS’

Description

This plan shows the route for the eastern
section of the Park Roadway, surveyed
by Thomas W. May, running from Kent
Street to Ft. Edward. Government House
is shown in the centre. The corner of Kent
Street and West Street is visible on the
extreme right. An inset in the lower right
corner shows a ‘plan shewing (sic) the
starting point’ on Kent Street.

23

Notes

This plan includes useful information on
the evolution of Victoria Park. Note
that the Park does not yet abut the
grounds of Government House, as it
does today. The original 40 acres
granted to the city in 1873 did not
include the fields closest to the House.
These were transferred to the City eight
years after the inauguration of the east
end of the Park Roadway on Queen
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Victoria’s Diamond Jubilee — 22 June 1897. Note that the
eastern boundary of Victoria Park — a line following the path of
the Park Driveway that today runs roughly south from Brighton
Road to Fort Edward. This is the plan referred to in The Victoria
Park Roadway Act (1896). The western portion of the Park
Roadway — running between Fort Edward and Brighton Road —
was built around 1904.
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13a.

24

13a. This detail shows the path of the planned Roadway, the
location of Government House and the meridian stones on its

grounds, and the eastern boundary of Victoria Park prior to
1905.




Detail of Chart of Charlottetown Harbour Il

GHI14

Date of Original 23 June 1916
Medium Lithograph
Dimensions Microfiche

Artist/Photographer HW Bayfield, J.
Orlebar, G. Bedford

Source LAC

Accession Number NMC164296

Inscription u.r. ‘181.16’; b.r. ‘J&C
Walker, sculpt’

Description

This chart illustrates the topography
and bathymetry of Charlottetown
Harbour in 1916, including the grid

layout of Charlottetown. Government
House is clearly labelled — along with its
flagstaff — and Victoria Park is well
illustrated. The Park Roadway now runs
from Kent Street to the Fort Edward
battery and around to connect with
Brighton Road.

Notes

This detail is interesting insofar as it
shows the evolution of Government House
Farm from food production to a space

25

for public enjoyment with the creation
of Victoria Park in 1873. Note the
Park Roadway, constructed in two
halves. The eastern portion — from Kent
Street to Fort Edward — was built in
1896-7. The western portion — to
Brighton Road - was built around
1904. Compare with GH4, GH10, and
GH18 to follow the evolution of
Victoria Park. Note that the Marine
Hospital labelled on this chart is not
visible on either GH11 or GH12 and is
likely a holdover from earlier printings.
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GH 15

Goad Fire Insurance Map of Charlottetown
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Date of 1917
Original

Medium Paper on Cloth
Backing

Dimensions 53x63 cm.

Artist/Photographer Chas E. Goad, C.E.

Source PARO

Accession Number 4458_S6

Inscription Various

Description

This is the first of 20 pages of fire insurance maps of
Charlottetown. It shows the downtown areaq, Victoria Park and
Government House, and neighbourhoods adjacent. It shows the
city divided into numbered blocks and numbered and coloured
sections. A key and index runs along the bottom and right
edges.

Notes

First drawn in 1903 and revised in 1917, GH15 provides
valuable information about the design of the Government
House grounds and Victoria Park at the turn of the century.
Features include the eastern section of the Park Roadway (built
1896-7) and the large Park Lake at its western end. Note that
the size and shape of this lake varies from map to map, hinting
at either shoddy cartography or unstable hydrology. (See
GH11, GH12, GH14 & GH18) The lake does not appear to
include Dead Man’s Pond (See GHJ5), which may have been
dry in this period. Note also the western section of the Park
Roadway, which was built in 1904-1905. Note also the
continuing separation between ‘Victoria Park’ in the west and
‘Government Park’ in the east. This division existed until 1905.
By the time of the map’s revision in 1917, the grounds of
Government House were reduced to a rump around the House
and the grounds of what — in 1934 — became the Prince
Edward Island Hospital. (See GH18) Note the absence of the
formal gardens, which may have been removed by this period.




Plans for Government House and Hospital Building

GH 16

Date of Original
Medium
Dimensions
Artist/Photographer
Source

Accession Number
Inscription

April 1904

Printed

Digital copy

C.B. Chapell

Island Magazine, Vol.6,
No.3, 1904.

None

‘Sketch from the west
showing proposed
roadway through
Victoria Park’ Lr. ‘C.B.
Chappell Apl.1904’

Description

Printed sketch of a proposed plan of
Victoria Park following the extension of
the Park Roadway to Brighton Road.
Government House sits at the left. In the
park, a huge fountain sits in the middle
of a circular formal garden. The Park’s
forests have been replaced with lawns,
roads, and planted borders. A note
summarizes the image and its origins.

27

Notes

Note the marginalization of Government
House in this plan.  Though fanciful,
GH16 is useful insofar as its explanatory
note confirms the date of the Park
Roadway’s extension to Brighton Road.
Note also the location of Judge Sullivan’s
house on Brighton Road — the seat of Lt.
Gov. Macdonald following the
construction of the Rena Maclean
Memorial Hospital.
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GH 17

Plans for Government House and Hospital Building

Date of Original
Medium
Dimensions
Artist/Photographer
Source

Accession Number
Inscription

1917

Architectural drawing
8x9 cm

Unknown

The Island Magazine,
No. 24 (Fall/Winter
1988), p. 20

None

I-r. ‘Nurses’

Home /Military
Hospital /vocational
training’ also details
on individual buildings
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Description

This is an architectural drawing of the
state of Government House and its
outbuildings after the construction of
the Rena MacLean Memorial Hospital.
This followed the House’s conversion
into administrative offices for the small
hospital complex built directly beside
it. Also visible are the Government

28

Farm’s many outbuildings — here
converted to vocational training.

Notes

Note the corridors linking Government
House to the Hospital buildings next
door — linking the administrative
offices in the House to the wards.
Note also the use of the outbuildings




to the north of the House for a vocational school, as well as the
construction of a small Nurses’ home west of the main house.
The nurses’ home was moved during the 1930-32 renovations
that re-established Government House as the vice-regal seat
and saw the demolition of the hospital and school building. The
nurses’ home was moved out of the Park and now sits at
116/118 Brighton Road.

17a. In 1998, archaeologist Scott Buchanan (pictured below)
was hired by the Government House Committee under the
direction of Dr.C. W. J. Eliot to perform an archaeological

17a.

29

exploration of the underground spaces that formed the
basement of Rena Maclean Memorial Hospital, built in 1917-
18. For years after the demolition of the main hospital /school
buildings, these spaces were used as garbage tips. They are
still there. The Rena Maclean Veterans Garden is situated over
part of these vast underground caverns. The original (1834)
formal gardens were either destroyed to make way for the
new nurses home, or were gone by the start of World War
One. (See GH15)
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GHI18

Detail of Chart of Charlottetown Harbour IV

Date of Original October 1938
Medium Halftone
Dimensions Microfiche

Artist/Photographer ~ HW Bayfield, J.
Orlebar, G. Bedford

Source LAC

Accession Number NMC188487

Inscription b.r. ‘Engraved 1845.
Zc 1938.; u.r.
‘291.38’
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Description

This chart illustrates the topography and
bathymetry of Charlottetown Harbour in
1938, including the grid layout of
Charlottetown. Government House s
clearly labelled. The Prince Edward
Island Hospital now sits to the north, at
the bottom of North River Road. The Park
Roadway runs from Kent Street to Fort
Edward, continuing on to connect with
Brighton Road.

30

Notes

This detail is interesting insofar as it
shows the final evolution  of
Government House farm from food
production to public recreation and
use. Note the Prince Edward Island
Hospital, constructed in 1934, and
changes made to the Park walkways.
Compare with GH4, GH10, and
GH14 to follow the evolution of
Government House Farm and Victoria
Park.




2. Building Interior

31
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GH 19

Plan of Government House — Ground Floor
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Date of Original 1856

Medium Red and black ink on
paper

Dimensions 26 x 20.2 cm

Artist/Photographer Member of Daly
Family

Source Confederation Centre
Art Gallery

Accession Number CAG 69.15.6

Inscription Notes identifying
rooms’ functions and
occupants, along with
various pieces of
furniture and some
outbuildings.

Description

A sketch map of the ground floor layout of Government House,
showing the layout of rooms and major pieces of furniture. The
map includes many notations in black and red pen.

Notes

This is one of the most vital documents in existence that indicates
exactly how Government House was used in the time of
Governor Dominick Daly, whose office was located at the
South-east corner of the building, near the east portico, and
connected to the office of his private secretary. Note also the
locations of the steps leading from the veranda to the lawn,
shown in GH72. Compare with GH21 and GH22, which
provide a contemporaneous illustrated record of the main Hall.
Taken together, these illustrations form an invaluable guide to
the interior layout of Government House in the 19t century.




Plan of Government House — Second Floor GH 20

Date of Original January 1856
Medium Pen and ink
Dimensions 23.2x 18 cm
Artist/Photographer Family member of
Governor Daly
Source Confederation Centre
Art Gallery
Accession Number CAG 69.15.6
Inscription Various. Lr. ‘Gov’t

House Jan. 1856’

Description

A sketch map of the first floor layout of
Government House showing the layout of rooms
and major pieces of furniture. The map includes
many notations in black and red pen, including a
date and location in its lower right hand corner.
Two rooms include keys explaining the location of
furniture.

Notes

This vital document indicates exactly how the
second floor Government House was used in the
time of Governor Daly. Note that what today is
called the “Royal Bedroom” is here just a spare
room. Four of Governor Daly’s children appear to
live in the House — Malachy Bowes Daly (1836-
1920), Joanna Wynn Daly (1830-1909), Caroline
Lovisa Daly (1832-1893), and John George Daly
(1838-1881). Note that the rooms’ occupants are
identified by their initials. Note also that legends
in red ink locate specific pieces of furniture in two
rooms. Compass directions border the drawing.
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GH 21

Saloon looking towards front door

Date of Original 1854-57

Medium Pencil and wash
sketch

Dimensions 29.5x17.9 cm

Artist/Photographer Joanna W Daly

Source PARO

Accession Number HF.72.41.1

Inscription Initials and date on
lower left “JWD July
Zovh"

Government House Historical Imnage Catalogue

Description

A pencil and wash illustration of the
entrance hall at Government House,
painted from the main staircase looking
towards the front door. Note the billiard
table at the foot of the stairs and the
round pedestal table near the main
entrance. Doors are visible leading
toward the other rooms in the house.

34

Notes

This sketch shows the entrance hall or
‘saloon’, as it was referred to during
the governorship of Sir Dominick Daly
(1854-1859). It is sparsely furnished.
Note the unexpected location of the
billiard table at the foot of the Grand
staircase. The large double doors
leading into  the  sitting  room




had not yet been cut as there appear to be pictures and
furniture against that wall, but a door leading from the saloon
into the sitting room is clearly visible on the right, in the alcove
that leads into the Ante Room. This accords exactly with what is
shown in GH19. Red curtains are on all the windows flanking
the main door.

21a. Detail of the artist’s signature (“JWD”) and what may be
the date in the lower left corner. The latter is illegible.

21b. Pedestal table today, also shown in GH22 and identified
in GH19.

21a.

21b.
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GH 22

Saloon looking towards the staircase

Date of Original Daly period, 1854-

57
Medium Pencil and wash
sketch
Dimensions 29.7 x 18 cm
Artist/Photographer Joanna W Daly
Source PEl Museum and
Heritage Foundation
Accession Number HF.72.41.2
Inscription Initials “JWD” on
lower left

Description
View of the saloon looking towards
the grand staircase. Red curtains are
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hanging in the Palladian window and
two tables — a round pedestal table
and a billiard table — populate the
otherwise unadorned Hall. Three
doors are shown. That on the left of
the stairs leads to the formal dining
room, that on the right of the stairs
leads to the passage to the kitchens,
and that in the middle right wall leads
to the secretary’s office and out to the
East portico.
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Notes

This sketch — together with its sister
(GH21) = illustrates the very ‘closed’
design of the main hall in the middle
of the nineteenth century. No doubt
the plethora of closable doors was
partly a response to Government
House’s infamous drafts. Note the
round table in the right foreground.
(see GH21b.)




Sketch plan by J .M. Hunter labelled “as it is”

GH 23

37

Date of Original January 1931
Medium Architectural drawing
Dimensions 35.5x41.5 cm
Artist/Photographer J.M. Hunter

Source PARO

Accession Number 3607/98.2
Inscription various
Description

Sketch plan of the ground floor of the East wing of Government
House as it appeared in 1931, prior to its inter-war restoration.

Notes

The hospital and then technical school complex that were to last
from 1917-1925 came to a close when a new government on
the Island shut it down as being too expensive to run. For the
next five years the state of Government House was in limbo
until it was finally decided to demolish the wartime structures
and restore the House back to the governors. The Public
Accounts for 1931-32 indicate that the Department of Public
Works spent $20, 678.65 to restore the house to its pre-war
arrangement.

There had been many internal changes during the war, which
had to be repaired. These have not yet been specifically
documented. The architect J.M. Hunter was hired to supervise
this work. This detail of a Hunter plan shows what he found
when he began work in 1931.
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G H 24 Sketch plan of Government House by J. M. Hunter (revised)

Date of Original January 1931
Medium Architectural drawing
Dimensions 35x46 cm
Artist/Photographer J.M. Hunter

Source PARO

Accession Number 3607/98.9
Inscription various
Description

Sketch plan of the ground floor of the East wing of Government
House as planned during the building’s interwar restoration.

Notes

GH24 illustrates J.M. Hunter’s proposed renovations to the East
side of Government House following its long period of
occupancy by the administrative offices of the Rena Maclean
Memorial Hospital and, later, the Prince Edward Island
Agricultural and Technical School (1921-1925). From an
examination of the surviving blueprints in the Public Archives it is
clear that there was much debate over how the restorations
were to be executed, especially on the East side where one
gets the impression that a miniature Government House with
office, dining room, sitting room, kitchen etc. were to be carved
out of the available space. To some degree this seems to have
been done. Note that the 1931-32 renovation did not entirely
follow the floor plan of the original building, as illustrated in
GH 18. By 1932 Lieutenant Governor (Sir) Charles Dalton was
able to move into the renovated spaces.
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Table Set for Visit of HM King George VI

GH 25

Date of Original
Medium
Dimensions
Artist/Photographer
Source

Accession Number
Inscription

1939
Photograph
11x16 cm
Unknown
PARO
2320/66-11
None

Description

A view of the dining room decorated for
the formal dinner welcoming their
majesties King George VI and Queen
Elizabeth in 1939. Two high-backed
chairs are visible on the far side of the
table, with low back chairs at all other
places. Flowers are festooned around
the room. Menus and full place settings
are also visible.

39

Notes

This image is very interesting insofar as
it records the preparations for the
Royal Visit of 1939 — the only photo in
the Provincial or Federal archives that
indicates the state of the interior of the
House in the late 1930s. This visit
marked the first major visit by a royal
to the House since the return of the Lt.
Governor in 1932.
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GH 26

Government House Hall decorated for Christmas

Date of Original 1940-1949

Medium Greeting card
Dimensions 24x19 cm
Artist/Photographer 10.5x17 cm

Source PEIMHF

Accession Number None

Inscription “Government House —

Charlottetown”
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Description

The main hall (or saloon) decorated
with a large Christmas tree and
garlands. The sign above the stairway
reads ‘HARK THE HERALD ANGELS SING
GLORY TO THE NEW BORN KING'. That on
the first landing reads ‘MERRY CHRISTMAS’.
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Notes

This illustration is interesting insofar as
it shows the rather exuberant style of
Christmas decoration in mid-century
PEI. Note also what looks like a
leopard skin rug in the lower right
corner of the photo.




Japanese Ambassador at Government House

GH 27

Date of Original
Medium
Dimensions
Artist/Photographer

Source
Accession Number
Inscription

1958-1963
Photograph
10.5x10.5 cm
Charlottetown
Guardian

PARO
3361/210446/1
None

Description

A view of H.E. Nobuhiko Ushibq,
Japanese Ambassador (right) meeting Lt.
Governor Hyndman (left). An embassy
aide stands behind, smiling broadly. The
image is most likely of what was then the
Governor’s  office. The desk s
remarkably cluttered. A painted brick
fireplace and portrait of HM Queen
Elizabeth Il are visible to the left.
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Notes

Though listed in the PARO catalogue as
being from 5 June 1965, this is not
possible due to the presence of Gov.
Hyndman (1958-1963) rather than
Gov. MacDonald (1963-1969). Given
the pattern of days visible on the
fireplace calendar, and assuming that
the month is indeed June, the photo must
date from 1962.
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G H 2 8 An American at Government House

Date of Original 1958-1963 Description Notes
Medium Photograph A view of an unidentified American The only indications of the date of this
2:?;7;::;:9’“'18, égif;giir (right) meeting Lt. Governor Hyndman photo can be gleaned from the
Guardian (left). One of the Government House mementos and keepsakes on Gov.
SA‘:‘::;O“ Nomber ;/3210/210446/] staff is walking past the door, smiling Hyndman’s  bookshelf, which  has
Inscription None broadly. The image is most likely of the accumulated more items since GH27.
Governor’s office. A painted brick Assuming the Governor’s propensity
fireplace and portrait of HM Queen was for collecting more goods over
Elizabeth visible on the extreme left. time, it is likely that this photo dates

from late 1962 or early 1963.
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Tea at Government House

GH 29

Date of Original
Medium
Dimensions
Artist/Photographer

Source
Accession Number
Inscription

1958-1963
Photograph
10.5x10.5 cm
Charlottetown
Guardian

PARO
3361/210888/2

None

Description

A view of nine ladies in printed dresses
drinking tea from china cups at
Government House. A silver tea service
is on the table, and the era’s lively
wallpaper is visible in the background.
One lady sits at the head of the table,
which also has cakes and a candelabrum.

43

Notes

The multiple floral prints and
wallpaper in this photo make it a fine
representation of fashion in the
period. The image dates to the
Governorship of F.W. Hyndman.
Given the dress of the younger
woman on the left, a date in the early
1960s is likely.

Government House Historical Image Catalogue




GH 30

Israeli Ambassador at Government House

Date of Original 1964-1968
Medium Photograph
Dimensions 10.5x10.5 cm
Artist/Photographer Charlottetown
Guardian

Source PARO
Accession Number 3361/462/1
Inscription None
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Description
A view of Lt. Governor Willibald
MacDonald (left) with Israeli

Ambassador Gershon Avner (right) and
his wife, Yale (centre).
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Notes

Gershon Avner served as Israeli
ambassador to Canada between
1963 and 1968 — a valuable clue
when dating this photograph. Note
also Mrs. Avner’s dress, which suggests
a date closer to 1963. This photo was
taken in either the sitting or reception
room.




Receiving Line at Government House Ball |

GH 31

Date of Original
Medium
Dimensions
Artist/Photographer

Source
Accession Number
Inscription

1964/1965
Photograph
10.5x10.5 cm
Charlottetown
Guardian
PARO
3361/490/1

None

Description

A view of L. Governor Willibald
MacDonald, his wife, Agnes, and the
official party greeting guests at the
Government House Ball. The photo was
taken under the west stairs in the main
Hall.
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Notes

Though no year is given for this photo, it
appears to predate GH32, as
evidenced by its earlier position in the
Guardian archive and some signs of
gentle aging in the vice-regal couple.
Given the evidence dating GH32 to
1965 or 1966, and the fact that
Governor MacDonald was not in office
for the 1963 Ball, we can hypothesize
a date of either 1964 or 1965.
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GH 32

Receiving Line at Government House Ball Il

Date of Original 1965/1966
Medium Photograph
Dimensions 10.5x10.5 cm
Artist/Photographer Charlottetown
Guardian

Source PARO
Accession Number 3361/493/1
Inscription None
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Description

A view of Lt. Governor Willibald
MacDonald, his wife Agnes, and two
aides waiting to receive guests at a
Government House Ball. Two members
of the band are partly obscured in the
background. The photo was taken under
the west stairs in the main Hall.

46

Notes

Though no year is given for this photo, it
is dated ‘July 16’ by PARO. Assuming
that the Ball was held on a Friday or
Saturday night, it could only have
happened in 1965 or 1966 during
Governor MacDonald’s time in office.
Note Mrs. MacDonald’s new bracelet
(see GH31) and the different aides to
the vice-regal couple. Note also the
wallpaper visible in the Music Room.




3. Building Exterior —
lllustrations

47
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G H 3 3 Government House and Christian’s Bridge with Three Figures

Date of Original Webber date: ¢ Description Notes
1834-45, Glenbow ) .
date 1852 A view of the east front of Government The Santagnello drawings are
Medium Pencil on paper House from the end of Kent Street, with absolutely vital to understanding the
Dimensions 25.6x20.4 cm . . L , .
Artist/Photographer AE. Santagnello three figures standing on Christian’s elements of Government House and its
Source PARO H H
e o Number 5824/10 Bridge. To the left of the house can be farm on the Fanningbank estate r‘naybe
Inscription None seen the tall wooden fence enclosing the no more than a decade after it was
formal garden. A boat sits in the left finished in 1834. A number of
background. interesting points can be seen. Note the

very small saplings planted on the front
lown of the House and on
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both sides of the main drive. Other points fo note include the
red or white ensign on the flagstaff (as opposed to the Union
flag), and the original shoreline before the construction of the
Victoria Park roadway in 1896-7. The East and South fronts of
the house are accurately drawn and one gets a fine impression
of the original East portico, used for all ordinary business with
the Governor. The guardhouse, the first built on the site, has no
visible porch but does sport a handsome set of corner boards.

Art historians disagree about the illustration’s date, though fairly
convincing evidence can be found in the clothing worn by the
three figures standing on Christian’s Bridge. Trude Oliver
received the following Information from Mr. David Webber,

33a.
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Curator of the Confederation Centre Art Gallery and Museum:
“The figure on the right is wearing a frock coat, forage cap and
epaulettes, a combination worn only between 1834 and 1855.
Epaulettes were eliminated in 1855. The forage cap has a large
crown of the style work between 1834 and 1845. After that date
the hat crowns were half that size.” This indicates a date in the
first decade after the House’s construction in 1834, roughly
contemporaneous with GH35 and GH36. This is supported by
the newly-planted saplings visible on either side of the drive
from Kent Street and Christian’s Bridge in all three illustrations.

33a. Detail of GH33 showing the guardhouse, gate, and
figures on Christian’s Bridge.
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GH 34

Government House with Dory

Webber date ¢
1834-45, Glenbow

Date of Original

date ¢ 1852
Medium Pencil on paper
Dimensions 29.7x18 cm
Artist/Photographer G. E. Santagnello
Source PARO
Accession Number 3824/9
Inscription None
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Description

A view of South and East fronts of
Government House and shorefront,
including a small dory anchored off the
front lawn. A red or white ensign flies on
the flagstaff.

Notes

This illustration is most likely
contemporaneous with GH35. Note that
to the left (west) of the flagpole is an
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area enclosed by vertical boards. This
is the flower garden, illustrated in the
garden plan included as GHé. Note the
poor perspective used in illustrating the
southwest veranda. Note also the as-
yet immature plantings lining both sides
of the drive from Christian’s Bridge —
clearly indicating the illustration’s
relation to GH33, whose plantings are
of an identical size and layout.




Sketch of Government House

GH 35

Date of Original
Medium

Dimensions
Artist/Photographer
Source

Accession Number
Inscription

1841-48

Pencil sketch
reproduced in The
Guardian

6x10 cm

Mary Hebbes

The Guardian

None

A drawing of
Government House,
Charlottetown, made
by Mrs. Mary Hebbes
between the
year1823 and 1830,
when she lived here.
(see below)

Description

This very rough drawing of the south and
east fronts of Government House shows
the yard in a primitive state, with the
flagpole fenced off and driveway
gardens immature. The image does not
clearly show the verandas.

Notes

This early work is attributed to Mrs Mary
Hebbes, who lived in Charlottetown from

1841-48.
51

The inscription in the original article by
The Guardian is incorrect, both in the
years in which Mrs. Hebbes lived in
Charlottetown and in the years she
might have drawn this image. After all,
Government House was not even built in
1830. This drawing was once in the
possession of Lt. Gov. Joseph Bernard.

Mrs Hebbes ran a finishing school for
young ladies where she taught
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French, drawing, vocal and instrumental music, and English. 35a. This is the full page of the Guardian in which GH35
School hours were from 9 am to 3 pm, with a half-day on appeared on January 8, 1947.

Saturdays and Sundays off. Note the immature trees lining the

drive, putting the illustration in the same period as GH33 &

GH34 — likely the first half of the 1840.

35a.
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Pownal Wharf

GH 36

Date of Original 1849

Medium Watercolour
Dimensions 30x90 cm
Artist/Photographer George Hubbard

Source PEIMHF

Accession Number None

Inscription None
Description

A large watercolour of Pownal Wharf
painted by George Hubbard in 1849.
At the extreme left of the painting,
beyond the military yard, sits
Government House.

Notes

GH36 is a useful dating reference for
the many cityscapes of Charlottetown
from around 1850. This idiosyncratic

watercolour includes the wooden St.
Dunstan’s, built in 1843. Extensive work in
identifying the date of this painting and
many of the features pictured here was
done by Marvin Moore and is contained
in his label from an exhibition at the
CCAGM in the early 1980’s:

This watercolour shows, from the extreme
left: - Government House, St. George's
Battery with its flagpole, Mcleod’s
Cooper Shop and dwelling, and Purdie’s
Woarehouse on the west corner of Pownal
and Water Streets. Opposite can be seen
the store and warehouse of W.W. Lord
and Company at the landward end of
Lord’s Wharf. Next east is Paw’s Store,
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the dwelling of W.B. Dean and then the
brick dwelling of the Peake family. To the
east is the hull of the “Castalia”, roofed
over and used as a warehouse and known
locally as “Peake’s Ark”, and St
Dunstan’s Cathedral. In the foreground
are the steamer “Rose”, the Pictou Mail
Packet, the Brigantine “Lucretia”, newly
built at Rustico and preparing for her
maiden voyage to Dublin. Next is the
Brigantine “Fanny”, built at
Charlottetown in 1845 and preparing for
her voyage to the California gold fields.
On the extreme right is the steamer
“Isla”, built at Vernon River in 1849 and
used as a ferry on the Hillsborough River.
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36a. This detail of GH36 shows Government House on the
extreme left, with the south portico clearly drawn and a
significant copse of trees located on the front lawn. Note its
resemblance with the copse shown in GH37 and GH38.

36a.
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From the Lawn of Government House, Charlottetown

GH 37

Date of Original
Medium
Dimensions
Artist/Photographer
Source

Accession Number
Inscription

c.1849

Watercolour
35.2x21.2 ecm
Unknown

PARO

HF 72.55.2; GH.71.9
“From the Lawn of
Government House
Charlottetown About
1850”

Description

A panoramic view of Charlottetown from
the front lawn of Government House,
including the east wing, the Kirk of St.
James, West End House, and the spire of
St. Dunstan’s cathedral. Reflections are
visible in the upper corners.

Notes

This cityscape of Charlottetown provides
some information on Government House
and its grounds. Note that the fields

55

leading to Government Pond are free of
vegetation, likely a decision by the artist
to allow the best view of Charlottetown’s
low-lying skyline. A copse of trees
stands on the front lawn, and is also
clearly visible in GH36 and GH38. The
painter has also deviated from the
House‘s traditionally white exterior.
Based on the limited paint analysis
available, this appears to be artistic
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license. The use of planking and grooves to give the impression
of masonry was likely a feature of the early cladding
however. Its grooves created a shadow line to demarcate
‘bands’ of siding. A good example of this can be seen on the
west front of the House's northwest wing and on West End
House at 18 West Street. (See GHA2) The wooden version of
Saint Dunstan’s Cathedral seen on the extreme right of the
painting was built in 1843.
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37a. Detail of GH37 showing the southeast corner of
Government House, driveway foliage and the old Kirk of St.
James. The image is dated from circumstantial evidence found
in the picture. The tfower of St. James was enlarged and altered
by the addition of pinnacles and a balustrade in 1850 (see
GH39) — giving it a perpendicular-style appearance. West End
House was built in 1839-40.




Entrance to Government House

GH 38

Date of Original 1845-50

Medium Photograph of
painting (c.1900)

Dimensions 8x10 in.

Artist/Photographer Unknown

Source PARO

Accession Number HF74.24.03

Inscription None

Description

An image of the East front of
Government House from across
Government Pond. In the foreground is
Government Pond, crossed by a bridge
leading to an ornamental gateway
installed in 1838.

Notes

The guardhouse resembles the first one
built, as shown in the Santagnello works.
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(See GH33 & GH34) A sentry box has
been attached to the corner, facing the
pond and bridge. This feature is not
seen in any other known representations
of this scene and may be inaccurate.
The same is true of the flagpole that
springs from the tip of the South portico
pediment. Investigations into the fabric
of the building suggest that no such
flagpole ever existed - not least due to
the absence of any sign of direct access
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to the pediment from the main house. This would be a
requirement for the daily flag drill that took place at
Governors’ residences across the former British colonies. Note
also the copse of trees on the front lawn behind the guardhouse
— pictured from the opposite angles in GH36 and GH37. The
photo was taken around 1900. The original painting shown in
this photo is now missing.
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38a. The Reg Porter Collection includes this scan from a colour
slide of what may be another copy of GH38 — possibly a
preliminary or composite sketch — drawn with brown and blue
pencils.

38a.
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Government House with Giant Flag

GH 39

Date of Original c. 1850

Medium watercolour

Dimensions 23.3x16.3cm

Artist/Photographer Falsely attributed to
Fanny Bayfield

Source PARO

Accession Number HF.72.55.1

Inscription none
Description

A view of the South and West fronts of
Government House, painted from the
Southwest lawns. A flagstaff sits atop
the North pediment and a

renovated tower with balustrade and
pinnacles in the ‘Perpendicular style’
adorns the Kirk of St. James.

Notes

This is one of several enigmatic
watercolours from the period around
1850 that show Government House in a
familiar landscape but with fanciful —
and inaccurate — South portico features.
This includes the massive fanlight over
the door and the door sidelights.
Investigations into the fabric of the
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building indicate that these features
were never a part of the main
entrance. It is interesting to compare it
to GH51, which bears similar
irregularities. Note the new
perpendicular style tower on the Kirk of
St. James.  This stood from 1850,
replacing the tower pictured in GH37.

39a. This early photo shows the first
Kirk of St. James after the replacement
of its tower with a thicker version
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sporting a balustrade and pinnacles. (See GH37) By the mid-
1870s, the first Kirk building was proving to be too small for the
church’s growing congregation, and the cornerstone for the
current Kirk of St. James was laid on June 7, 1877. The old Kirk
was moved north on Pownal Street, where it served as the Kirk’s
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Church Hall. In 1895, a newer church hall was added to the
Kirk itself, and the ‘Old Kirk’ was finally taken down.
Interestingly, its narthex now stands as part of 43 Churchill
Road, while the main body of the church was integrated into a
building that once stood at 33 Euston Road.




Government House, Charlottetown PEI

GH 40

Date of Original
Medium

Dimensions
Artist/Photographer
Source

Accession Number
Inscription

1853

Pen & Ink with wash
14x11 em.

Robert M. Parsons
LAC

1930-001-11

On mount ‘Charlotte
Town, Prince Edward's
Island / R.M.P. /
1853’

Description

A view of the Charlottetown from the
entrance of the harbour near Fort
Amherst.  Government House is clearly
visible as a large, white space to the left
of the town. The waterfront, with its
many piers and the steeple of St.
Dunstan’s Church, stands to its right.
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Notes

Although this image carries little
information about Government House
itself, it clearly illustrates the House’s
importance as a navigational aid and
public building on the Charlottetown
waterfront. Even at this distance, its
white bulk is clearly visible against the
heavily wooded peninsula on which the
town sits.
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GH 41

Government House, Charlottetown PEI

Date of Original July1854

Medium Watercolour
Dimensions 18x12.7 cm.
Artist/Photographer Caroline Louisa Daly
Source LAC

Accession Number R9266-161
Inscription “C Daly” lower right
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Description

A view of the West front of
Government House. The French doors
leading from the Anteroom (now the
‘Music Room’) to the gardens stand
open and ivy or creeper climbs the
Tuscan Doric columns supporting the
veranda directly opposite. A Union
flag flies on the flagpole and colourful
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flowers are clearly visible in the lower
right. The far lower right corner of the
painting is missing.

Notes

This watercolour is indicative of the
Daly family’s reasonably reliable
renderings of the House and grounds.




The artist accurately depicts the veranda, windows and
chimneys. Note the open double doors leading out of the
Anteroom/Music Room. This agrees with the note written in red
on GH19, which describes the room as ‘ante room with folding
doors always open’. (Emphasis in original) Caroline Daly was 22
at the time of this painting, and stayed in the bedroom beneath
the south portico. (See GH20)

41a. Detail of GH19, showing the note on the double doors
leading out of the Ante Room/Music Room.

41b. Detail of GH41 showing the open double doors.

41a.

41b.
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GH 42

Government House from the Water

Date of Original c.1854

Medium Watercolour

Dimensions 13.1 x 21.5cm

Artist/Photographer Attributed to John C.
Daly, perhaps Caroline

L. Daly
Source Confederation Centre
Art Gallery
Accession Number CAG 69.15.3
Inscription None

Description
A view of the south face of Government
House and its lawns, with shadows
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indicating the mid- to late afternoon sun.
A small boat with figure in the bay is
also visible. A Union flag flies on the
flagstaff.

Notes

This handsome watercolour accurately
depicts all of the main features of
Government House in the 1850s.
Attributed to John Daly, the piece’s
resemblance in style and composition to
GHA41 indicate that it was probably the
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work of his older sister, Caroline. The
chronological ordering of the Daly
images (GH41-GH46) is based on the
visible architecture of Charlottetown,
dates on canvas, and other visual clues.
Without any compelling evidence to the
contrary, the entire set of works by the
Daly family has been grouped
together. Within the collection, works in
similar media (watercolours vs. pencil
sketches) have been grouped as well.




East Portico of Government House

GH 43

Date of Original
Medium
Dimensions
Artist/Photographer
Source

Accession Number
Inscription

September 1854
Pencil sketch

17.5x29 cm

C. Daly

PARO

4125

“East side of the house
and the mouth of the
harbour (South) Nova
Scotia in the distance and
the Steamer bringing in
the English
Mail”/September
1854/C. Daly

Description

A pencil drawing of the East portico,
looking across the front lawn and West
River, with boats and the mail steamer in
the background.

Notes

Although roughly drawn, this picture
gives a very good impression of the
articulation of the components of the
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East portico and verandas in the first
half century of the building’s existence.
Normally attributed to Charles Daly —
artist and brother of then Lt. Governor
Dominick Daly — it may also be the
work of Caroline L. Daly, the
Governor’'s daughter. (See GH41 to
GH46)

Government House Historical Image Catalogue




GH 44

View toward Government House

Date of Original September 6, 1854

Medium Pencil sketch

Dimensions 17.8 x 25 cm

Artist/Photographer  Charles L. Daly, possibly
Caroline Daly

Source Confederation Centre
Art Gallery
Accession Number CAG 69.15.1
Inscription br C.L. Daly; bl Sept 6
1854
Description

A view of Government House from
the site of West End House (now site
of Beaconsfield) showing Christian’s
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Bridge, the front gate, and the earliest
version of the guardhouse with figures.
Government House is reasonably well
rendered in the background.

Notes

There is a turnstile clearly visible on the
left of the gate, which in the drawing is
open. The sentry box that was
inaccurately depicted in GH38 is shown
facing the drive, as it does in all
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subsequent illustrations. Note that
vegetation on either side of the drive
has grown considerably, partially
obscuring the House. Note also the
continued absence of a breastwork
along the headland. Like most of the
Daly family’s illustrations of
Government House and its grounds (see
GH41-GH46), the architectural
features and topographical contours
shown in G44 provide a reasonably




reliable guide to the building’s exterior and grounds in the
1850s. Attribution of this work remains more problematic.
Unlike GH43, the signature on GH44 reads ‘C.L.Daly’ —
possibly referring to Lt. Governor Daly’s second daughter,
Caroline Louvisa. Similarities in medium and handwriting
indicate that the same artist may well have been responsible
for both GH43 and GH44. Such problems of attribution are
common in the Daly family’s illustrations. Of two of Caroline’s
watercolours, one — GH42 — is normally attributed to her

44a.
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younger brother John. (See GH41 & GH42) Questions
persist around many of the Daly works. How many are the
work of Charles, who is only known to have visited the Island
in 18562 Did the entire family have a hand in their
production? Without further study, all attributions must be
taken with a grain of salt.

44a. Detail of GH44 showing the gates and turnstile leading
to the House, and the artist’s signature bottom right.

Government House Historical Inage Catalogue




GH 45

Government House and Charlotietown Seen from the West

Date of Original September 1854
Medium Pencil sketch
Dimensions 17.7x25.3 cm
Artist/Photographer Charles Daly (2)

Source Confederation Centre
Art Gallery

Accession Number CAG 69.15.4

Inscription “C Daly” lower right

Description

A landscape view of Government
House, the shoreline of Government
Farm, and the Charlottetown skyline
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from the Kirk of St. James to St. Dunstan’s
Cathedral. A two-mast boat sits in the
bay off Government Pond.

Notes

Note how foliage is beginning to
obscure the view of the town to the East
of the House. The Kirk of St. James now
sports its perpendicular bell tower
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decorated with pinnacles and
balustrade. West End House, sitting
here at the present site of Beaconsfield,
is shown without verandas. GH45 is
attributed to Charles Daly. Like GH44,
however, it could be the work of his
niece Caroline Louisa — daughter of
then-Governor Daly and referred to as
‘C’ in GH19 and GH20.




Government House in Winter with Sleigh

GH 46

Date of Original
Medium
Dimensions
Artist/Photographer

Source

Accession Number
Inscription

1854-1857
Watercolour

16.5 x 25.3 cm
Attributed to John
Corry Wilson Daly.
Confederation Centre
Art Gallery

CCAG 69.15.2

None

Description

A winter view of the South and West
fronts of Government House, painted
from the Southwest lawns. In the right
background, the 1850 tower of the Kirk
of St. James is visible. In the foreground
is a red, one-horse open sleigh with
figures, driving East along either the
drive or lawn of Government House.
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Notes

Though architecturally imperfect (see
below), this  watercolour shows
Government House much as it must have
looked around 1855. Unlike other
works by the Daly family, the height of
the South portico is wrong. In reality,
the pediment inserts into the roof at a
lower point than is pictured.
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The Kirk of St. James, with its new 1850 tower, is again a useful
dating tool. The shutters on Government House have been
removed and stored for the winter. The winter porch has been
attached to the front door, the first appearance of what
became a year-round feature by 1860. (See GH66)

The attribution of this painting to JW Daly is debateable. As

Reg Porter points out, other views of Government House by
members of the Daly family are far more fastidious in their
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46a.
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renderings of the House. GH46 repeats some of the portico
problems seen in GH39, and also shares the latter’s viewing
angle. It is possible that both works are by the same artist,
were drawn off-site using shared source material, or that
GHA46 is a reproduction of GH39. Without a signature to
confirm the artist’s identity, attribution remains tenuous.

46a. A detail of GH46, showing the incorrect insertion point
of the South pediment.




Entrance to the Government House Grounds

GH 47

Date of Original
Medium
Dimensions
Artist/Photographer
Source

Accession Number
Inscription

1850-1860
Graphite on paper
30.4 x 39.4 cm
Unknown
Confederation Centre
Art Gallery

CCAG 2012.3.1
Entrance to
Government House
Grounds/About
1850/ original sketch
from nature by an
unknown artist

Description

A view of the main gate, guardhouse,
and lane to Government House, heavily
overgrown by foliage. Christian’s Bridge,
in the foreground, appears slightly worn.

Notes

The dating of this illustration to ‘about
the year 1850’ is thrown info doubt by
the sheer scale of the trees lining
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the drive and almost completely
obscuring Government House itself. The
foliage alone indicates a later date.
Compared to established chronologies
and photographic records (See GH44
& GH76), a later date seems most
likely. The state of the bridge, may
indicate a date just before the
renovations associated with the visit of
the Prince of Wales in 1860.
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GH 48

Charlotte Town Harbour from a Drawing Room Window

Date of Original 31/3/1852
Medium watercolour on paper
Dimensions 32.5 x 27 cm
Artist/Photographer Beazeley, Margaret
Source Confederation Centre
Art Gallery
Accession Number CAG 90.8b
Inscription bl 31 March 1852; be

Charlotte Town
Harbour from a
drawing room window
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Description

A winter view of Charlottetown Harbour
just  off Government Farm, whose
headlands are clearly visible in the right
middle ground. The ice road across the
harbour is clearly visible, with sleighs
running across it. Significant snow banks
soften the headlands and harbour. The
perspective indicates that the artist
worked from a window in West End

72

House when it was located at the
present site of Beaconsfield.

Notes

This image is interesting insofar as it
shows the headlands of Government
Farm in the early days of the estate
and how those grounds interacted with
the winter road system on
Charlottetown Harbour.




Our House from Government Grounds, Charlotte Town

GH 49

Date of Original
Medium
Dimensions
Artist/Photographer
Source

Accession Number
Inscription

19/4/1852
Watercolour

32.5 x 27 cm
Beazeley, Margaret
Confederation Centre
Art Gallery

CAG 90.8¢

bl April 19th, 1852;
bec Our House from
Government Grounds,
Charlotte Town

Description

An early springtime view of West End
House from Government Farm, whose
lawns and fences constitute the
immediate foreground. A carriage
rides up Kent Street and the snow has
melted from both the road and the
lawns of West Street.
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Notes

This image is interesting insofar as it
provides a reasonably reliable record
of architecture on West Street in the
early 1850s, thereby providing further
evidence on which to base the dating of
subsequent landscape of Government
House looking east.
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GH 50

Keswick House

Date of Original c.1855

Medium Watercolour

Artist/Photographer Attributed to Fanny
Amelia Bayfield

Source PEIMHF
Accession Number None
Inscription None
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Description

This fine watercolour shows Government
House in the background with its
guardhouse and  Christian’s Bridge
crossing Government Pond.  Kewsick
House sits in the centre of the
foreground, with the Kirk of St. James in
the middle distance on the right.
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Notes

The post-1850 Kirk of St. James is at the
right, with its perpendicular tower
crowned with a balustrade and
pinnacles. The yellow Keswick House is
in the centre foreground, with a circular
driveway and rustic garden. This centre
plan Georgian house stood on the site of
the present Charlottetown Hotel. The




house in the centre background amongst the trees is Rochford
House. Built by the Honourable Ambrose Lane sometime
between 1821 and 1833, it was later moved southward from
the centre of the block and is now 29-31 Rochford Square.

50a. A detail GH50 focusing on Government House, the
guardhouse and Christian’s Bridge. The complete absence of
foliage on either side of the drive is likely an artistic decision to
permit an unimpeded view of the House.

50a.

75 Government House Historical Image Catalogue




G H 5 ] Government House — MacNutt painting

Description Notes
Date of Original c. 1855 A summer view of the South and West Like GH39, this painting shows the front
'D“,edi““‘, Watercolour fronts of Government House, painted entrance of Government House with a
imensions 16.3 x 22.6 cm
Artist/Photographer  Unknown from the Southwest lawns with St. James massive fanlight and sidelights -
Source é‘;’l*l‘:zﬁ’;‘:d““" in the background, including a fanciful architectural  features that never
Accession Number  None arrangements of doubled columns on the existed. It also shows paired columns
Inscription None South front. An apparently undersized supporting the South pediment — an
union flag flies on the flagstaff. inaccurate representation that

reappears in GH53 and GH54. The
chimneys visible on the western roof
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are also inaccurate. One wonders if the many errors of
observation crop up in various illustrations of Government House
from the 1850s can be traced back to copying errors in, or
from, earlier illustrations. The painter of GH51 may have
worked from a representation of the early East portico — which
had four columns arranged in two pairs. Without a clear view
of the South portico, he or she may have assumed that the
paired pattern of supporting columns was repeated.

51a.
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It is also possible that many of these problems have their origins
in GH38, which first misrepresented the flagpole on the South
pediment (as in GH39) and shows an east portico arrangement
closely akin to the problematic south portico seen in GH51,
GH53 and GH54. The debate surrounding these images
continues.

51a. Detail of GH51 showing problems with the south portico,
front doors, and west chimneys.
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GH 52

Reception of the Prince in Charlottetown, 1860

Date of Original 6/8/1860
Medium Engraving on paper
Dimensions 16.5 x 27.9 cm
Artist/Photographer See inscription
Source Confederation Centre
Art Gallery
Accession Number CAG 69.15.7
Inscription Reception of the
Prince in

Charlottetown, Prince
Edward’s Island — The
Procession to the
Governor’s House —
from a sketch by our
own artist. L.r.
‘Hulcomb & Davisso’ 2
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Description

An engraved view of the arrival of the
Prince of Wales at Government House in
August 1860, showing the gate and
guardhouse and the mature trees lining
either side of the lane to Government
House. The carriages of the official party
are riding through the gates, followed
by a well-ordered troop from of the
Prince Edward Island colonial militia in
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parade uniform. A crowd lines the
south side of Christian’s Bridge,
cheering.

Notes

Frank Leslie’s Illustrated Newspaper,
later renamed Leslie’'s Weekly, was an
American illustrated literary and news
magazine founded in 1852, It




continued to be published until 1922, It was one of several

magazines founded and run by publisher and illustrator Frank
Leslie.

52a. This detail of GH52 focuses on the guardhouse, drive and
House. Note the very poorly rendered roofline of Government
House, which bears only the most passing resemblance to the

the building’s actual structure.  The guardhouse is more
accurately represented, though it still differs slightly from the
post-1860 version seen in GH76 — for example, lacking the
latter’s corner boards. This makes the architecture of GH52 a
problematic source with which to establish chronology.

52b. Detail of GH52 showing the signature in the lower right.

52b.
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GH 53

Government House and its Approach

Date of Original c.1860

Medium Watercolour

Artist/Photographer G. Andrews 2

Source Dr. Paul Landrigan,
Halifax NS

Accession Number None

Inscription None
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Description

A view of the South and East fronts of
Government House and its approach
from the old site of West End House
(today Beaconsfield).

Notes

Though a fine watercolour, GH53
repeats the doubled columns that
appear in GH51. (See GH51a) This
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error is repeated in GH54 — which in
terms of both content and perspective is
clearly based on this image. In GH54,
the engraver shortens the headland into
the harbour and has inaccurately
rendered the guardhouse as it existed
in 1860 — removing, for example, the
covered porch that is visible upon close
inspection of GH53 and was clearly
present in 1860 (See GH44 and
GH76).




Attribution of this painting to G. Andrews is based on the
inscription attached to GH54, one source of which records that
the latter was done ‘after G. Andrews’. (See GH54)

53a.

81

53a. Detail of GH53 showing the inaccurately rendered pairs
of lonic columns supporting the South portico.
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GH 54

The lllustrated London News, August 4, 1860

Date of Original August 4 1860

Medium Engraving on paper

Dimensions 49.5 x 36.9 cm

Artist/Photographer  ‘After G Andrews’

Source Confederation Centre Art
Gallery

Accession Number CAG 2003.1.46

Inscription The lllustrated London

News/August 4,1860/
The Visit of the Prince of
Woales to North America
— The Government House
Charlottetown, Prince
Edward Island

Government House Historical Imnage Catalogue

Description

A view of South and East fronts of
Government House and its approach
taken from the old site of West End
House (today Beaconsfield). Christian’s
Bridge and a very small version
guardhouse (see notes) are visible in the
foreground, with a flag flying on the
flagstaff at the far side of the House.
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Notes

There is some confusion by the engraver
about the existence and /or
representation of the verandas in this
illustration. The guardhouse also bears
little resemblance to the outbuilding
constructed on the site for the Prince of
Woales’s visit in 1860, lacking as it does
the covered porch that is




clearly present in GH53. Indeed, the guardhouse in this image
bears a striking resemblance to the structure represented in the
Santagnello drawings of the 1840s (See GH33 & GH34), and
may have been based in part on those earlier images. On the
other hand, the errors may be a simple misinterpretation of the
guardhouse as presented in GH53 — the most likely source for
the Illustrated London News engraving. Note also the doubled

columns supporting the south portico — a flaw copied directly
from GH53.

54a.
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This image was printed in Ample Mansions by R. H. Hubbard
(p-929) and is described as “after G N Andrews”. This may give
some clue to the identity of the unknown artist behind GH53,
though the proof is too tenuous for an authoritative attribution.

54a. This detail from GH54 shows the misrepresented
guardhouse, without porch or corner boards, the poorly rendered
verandas on Government House, and the paired columns
improperly drawn under the south pediment.
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GH 55

Government House From Ye Fort

Date of Original September 15,1860

Medium Brown wash over
pencil with opaque
white on green wove

paper

Dimensions 11x16.9 cm

Artist/Photographer Conway Mordaunt
Shipley

Source LAC

Accession Number C-000733

Inscription b.l. “Government

House from ye fort.
Charlotte Town, P.E.I.
CA 11 am. Sept 15. L.
K.”
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Description

View of the South front of Government
House from the corner of Water and
Rochford streets. The tall fence
surrounding the flower garden is visible,
and the House itself is poorly rendered in
the centre background. The flagpole sits
to the left of the House.
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Notes

Note the numerous architectural
inaccuracies in  this rendering of
Government House, starting with the
roofline and South portico, whose
perspective is warped. Note also the
absence of the lonic columns supporting
the south pediment. Instead, the image
represents the veranda as wrapping all
the way around the House rather than
being interrupted by the front entrance.




Spot Sketch of Charlottetown

GH 56

Date of Original
Medium
Dimensions
Artist/Photographer
Source

Accession Number
Inscription

1868

watercolour on paper
25 x 37 ecm

Harris, Robert
Confederation Centre
Art Gallery

CAG H-169x

The original mount is
no longer present. It
was inscibed "SPOT
SKETCH CH'TOWN"
and signed br R.H.
1868. No inscription
exists on the new
mount.s

Description

View of the shoreline of Government
Farm from the present site of the
armoury. Government House is visible in
the central background, standing high on
Fanningbank. A radiant, red sunset
marks the time of day. Two figures — one
in red — stand on the headland near the
corner of West and Richmond streets. The
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site of the present-day Armoury is
visible on the extreme right.

Notes

This is the earliest dated Robert Harris
illustration of Government House.
Though only roughly sketched into the
background, one gets a fine impression
of Government House’s picturesque
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situation relative to the harbour. Regardless of its architectural
or topographical interest, it remains a very handsome
watercolour.
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56a. A detail of GH56 showing Government House. Very little
detail is visible in this spot sketch — most likely executed in one
on-site sitting.




Tobogganing at P.E. Island — The Start

GH 57

Date of Original
Medium
Dimensions
Artist/Photographer
Source

Accession Number
Inscription

1870

Coloured lithograph
24x33.5 cm

H B Laurence
Confederation Centre
Art Gallery

CAG 64.25.3
Signed bottom right
“HBL” and titled
“Toboggining at P.E.
Island = The Start”

Description

View of a tobogganing slide set up in
the West lawn of Government House,
with side of its Southwest corner visible
at the edge of the frame.
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Notes

The toboggan slide stood in the grounds
of Government House, seen on the right.
The House is given little importance in
this image. However, it appears as if the
visible corner may be covered with a
wide pilaster or corner board. In that
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case, the preparatory sketch would have been made before 57 a. Detail of GH57, showing additional information provided

the House was shingled in the summer of 1856 and the original alongside the original image. This would explain the
wood cladding was still intact. The corner pilasters and plank popularity of toboggan slides around Victoria Park, as also
cladding are reproduced in the painting prepared for Reg seen in GH87.

Porter by David Webber in 1991. (See GHA2)

57a.

Government House Historical Image Catalogue 88




Government House in Harper’s New Monthly Magazine

GH 58

Date of Original
Medium
Artist/Photographer
Source

Accession Number
Inscription

1877

Engraving
Unknown

Harper’s New
Monthly Magazine,
1877

None

Harper’s New
Monthly Magazine,
1877

Description

A picturesque view of the South front of
Government House, with the guardhouse
visible on the right, and a small boat
working offshore. A flag flies to the left
of the building.
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Notes

Unlike earlier engravings (GH52 and
GH54), GH58 appears to have
accurately captured many of
Government House’s most prominent
architectural features. This includes the
verandas and porticos, the roofline, the
guardhouse, and the location of
chimneys. The boat may be fishing for
oysters.
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GH 59

View of Christian’s Bridge and Road Leading to Government House

Date of Original
Medium
Dimensions
Artist/Photographer
Source

Accession Number
Inscription

July 1877
Watercolour
50x32.6 cm

George Ackerman
PARO

HF.73.301.1
“Government House,
Charlottetown, PEl/
Sir R. Hodgson Knight,

Lt. Governor/July
1877”
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Description

This attractive watercolour in the
topographical tradition portrays the
approach to Government House from the
West end of Kent Street. It includes
Christian’s Bridge, an improbably small
boat with figures in the bay, the
guardhouse and gate, the laneway with
its wooden sidewalk and mature stands
of trees, and an obscured view of the
east front of Government House.
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Notes

This is the work of George Ackerman,
an art teacher from Ontario who
settled in Summerside in the late
1870’s. We see a carriage coming up
the road from Fanningbank, past the
high fence erected around Beaconsfield
by James Peake. Government Pond is
to the right; Charlottetown Harbour is
at the left. The distinguished occupant
of the «carriage is most likely




Sir Robert Hodgson, Lieutenant Governor from 1874 to 1879.
The second gentleman is — perhaps — his Secretary. The single-
storey building on the far right is the armourer’s store attached
to the Militia drill shed, erected on this site in 1866. Note the
broad plank walkway that now stretches to Government House.

59a. In this detail of GH59, the drive to Government House is
flanked by mature trees. There is a pedestrian boardwalk
running from Kent Street up to the House. Although land had by

59a.
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this time been set aside along the shore for a road leading to
what will be Victoria Park, construction has not yet begun. To
prevent erosion, the shore has been covered with a plank
breakwater. The guardhouse, the third in that location, is new,
having been built in 1873 to replace the one that burned in
1871. Note the absence of the second house’s corner boards.
This version stood until around 1912, when it was finally
removed and was not replaced.
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GH 60

View of Charlotietown from Government Farm

Date of Original 1878

Medium Woatercolour & tempera

Dimensions 20.2 x 28.9 cm

Artist/Photographer  Robert Harris

Source Confederation Centre
Art Gallery

Accession Number CAG H-114

Inscription unsigned; undated

Description
A view of Charlottetown from the
Government Farm, with Saint Peter’s
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Anglican Cathedral (including All Souls’
Chapel) and the post-1877 Kirk of Saint
James visible across government pond.
A carriage rides north on Rochford
Street. Fitzroy Street is clearly visible in
the centre of the painting.

Notes

Note the new Kirk of St. James, built in
1877 and dedicated in 1878. The
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tower of the old Kirk is visible to the
north. After being moved, the latter
acted as Church Hall until 1895, when a
new Church Hall designed by C.B.
Chappell was added to the west end of
the Kirk. (See GH39) This is the first of
five Harris paintings. In the absence of
chronological evidence to the contrary,
these five works (GH60-GH64) have
been grouped together.




In Front Of Charlottetown Park, Before Government House

GH 61

Date of Original
Medium
Dimensions
Artist/Photographer
Source

Accession Number
Inscription

1879

watercolour on paper
17.8 x 24.8 cm
Harris, Robert
Confederation Centre
Art Gallery

CAG H-107
unsigned, br 17 Apr.
1879

Description

A view of the front lawns of Government
House, from the vicinity of Beaconsfield
at low tide. The trees lining the South
side of the drive are clearly visible in the
right middle ground, with field stretching
off into the central background. The
breastwork along the shoreline is also
visible.
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Notes

Note the absence of the Park
Roadway, constructed in 1896-7, and
the large trees that have grown on the
south side of the lane to Government
House. These are visible on the
extreme right of this lovely painting.
The title of this piece is confusing insofar
as it means ‘in front of rather than
chronologically ‘before’ Government
House.
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GH 62

Government House Grounds, Charlottetown

Date of Original unknown
Medium watercolour on paper
Dimensions 13.3x22cm
Artist/Photographer  Harris, Robert
Source Confederation Centre
Art Gallery
Accession Number CAG H-2109
Inscription b In Gov't House
Grounds/Ch'town;
signed br
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Description

A view of field on the grounds of
Government House, likely from the
vicinity of the formal gardens, looking
west.

Notes

This is the second of four Harris
watercolours featuring aspects of
present-day Victoria Park. A clue as
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to the location of the illustration is given
by the slope of the land away to the
left. Given the topography around
Fanningbank, this most likely indicates
that the harbour lay to the South - in
that direction. This would place the
artist looking West across the fields
labelled ‘B’ in GH7, though any
conclusions in this regard remain
tentative.




Off Government Pond, Charlottetown

GH 63

Date of Original
Medium
Dimensions
Artist/Photographer
Source

Accession Number
Inscription

unknown

oil on board

14.8 x 23.7 cm
Harris, Robert
Confederation Centre
Art Gallery

CAG H-2159
reverse centre, Off
Gov't House pond,
Charlottetown; 9 1/2
X 53/4

Description

A view of the harbour, likely looking
southwest, across to the vicinity of Rocky
Point. The copse of trees visible in the
right foreground is likely the same
copse visible in GH36, GH37, and
GH38. A crack in the ice indicates the
likely outflow from Government Pond
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into  Charlottetown  harbour.  The
painting is heavily worn around the
edges from friction with an old frame.

Notes

This is the third of four Harris paintings
featuring aspects of present-day
Victoria Park.
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GH 64

In Victoria Park, Charlottetown

Date of Original unknown

Medium oil on canvas

Dimensions 25.4 x 30.6 cm

Artist/Photographer  Harris, Robert

Source Confederation Centre
Art Gallery

Accession Number CAG H-267

Inscription unsigned; undated
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Description

A view of a pond or lake in Victoria
Park. Figures are processing into the
background. Three birch trees stand in
sunlight in the middle ground.

Notes

This is the fourth of four Harris paintings
featuring aspects of present-day
Victoria Park. It represents either the
Park Lake pictured at the west end of
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maps and charts of the Park before
World War Two (see GH12, GH14,
GH15, and GH18), or Dead Man’s
Pond. The author leans towards the
latter, given that the scene bears such a
striking similarity to the site of the Pond
today as one looks south from its north
shore.  However, without more clues,
such suppositions remain tenuous.




Lieutenant Governor’s Residence

GH 65

Date of Original
Medium
Dimensions
Artist/Photographer
Source

Accession Number
Inscription

1880

Lithograph

16.5 x7.7 cm
Unknown

lllustrated Historical
Atlas of the Province
of Prince Edward
Island, JW Meacham,
1880, p. 25

None

“Lieut. Governor’s
Residence,
Charlottetown, P.E.L.”

Description

An engraving of the South front of
Government House, made from the
vicinity of the present Armoury. Two
boats sail in the bay off Government
Pond, and the copse on the front lawn
has grown dramatically from earlier
representations.
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Notes

As a decorative feature in Meacham’s
excellent lllustrated Atlas of Prince
Edward Island (1880), the illustration is
more romantic than authoritative.
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4. Building Exterior —
Photographs
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Government House circa 1860

GH 66

Date of Original c. Summer 1860
Medium Photograph
Dimensions 8 x 10 inches
Artist/Photographer  unknown
Source Public Archives of
Canada
Accession Number C 8557
Inscription none

Description

A clear view of the South front of
Government House, showing the East
pediment jutting out from the surrounding
verandas. Two figures sit on the front
steps. The building is now shingled
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Notes

This photograph, arguably the oldest
extant photo of Government House,
provides essential information about
architectural features that are often
confused in earlier  drawings,
paintings, and engravings. Note the
shutters on the upstairs windows and

Government House Historical Image Catalogue




on the sitting room windows to the left of the front door. Note 66a. Detail of GH66, showing the East pediment jutting out

also that by 1860, the once-temporary winter porch seems to from the verandas. These are supported by round, Tuscan
have become a permanent feature. The original grooved plank Doric columns and feature the early, and very elegant,
cladding had been removed in 1856. dentilated entablature. Note that the House’s original grooved

plank cladding — like that on the northwest wing and on West
End House — was replaced by shingles in 1856. Any sign of
corner pilasters disappeared at that time. (See GHA2)

66a.
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Visit of Prince of Wales, August 1860

GH 67

Date of Original
Medium
Dimensions
Artist/Photographer
Source

Accession Number
Inscription

9/10 August 1860
Photograph
14.5x23 cm
Wellington Chase
PARO

4567 /1

None

Description

A damaged photograph showing a
large group of well-wishers in front of
the south portico of Government House
during the visit of the Prince of Wales in
1860, taken from the south lawns.

Notes

This extraordinary photograph shows the
large group that came to see the Prince
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of Wales when he visited the Island in
August 1860. Clearly seen are various
military figures, a cleric, and many other
people. It was discovered by Reg Porter
in the bottom of a trunk of books that
had belonged to John Hunter Duvar and
had been stored on a wet dirt floor of
the cellar of Spring Park House in
Charlottetown.
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67a. Detail of GH67 showing the entablature of the South 67b. Detail of GH67 showing the Southeast veranda, its
portico and the lonic volutes of the supporting columns. supporting Tuscan Doric colonnade, and visitors in military and
civilian dress.

67a.

67b.
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The Prince, His Entourage, and Governor and Mrs. Dundas

GH 68

Date of Original
Medium
Dimensions
Artist/Photographer
Source

Accession Number
Inscription

9/10 August 1860
Photograph
14x22.5 cm
Wellington Chase
PARO

4567/2

None

Description

A water damaged group photograph of
the Prince of Wales's party in front of
the South portico of Government House
in August, 1860. Clearly visible is the
winter porch, which was by this time a
permanent feature of the South portico.
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Notes

Gathered for an official photograph in
front of Government House are the
Prince of Wales and his suvite, Governor
and Mrs. Dundas. On the extreme right
stand  Lieutenant  Colonels  Gray
(bearded) and Swabey (clean shaven)
— both of whom were aides to
Governor Dundas. As well as providing
a visual recording of these individuals,
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including the future Premier and Chairman of the Charlottetown
Conference, this photo is an excellent source of information
regarding the design of the porch and was used to prepare for
the late 20t-century renovation of the pedimented porch
erected around 1912, as well as the verandas and porticos. The
photo also shows the exact configuration of the stone steps to
the veranda - later made famous when the Fathers of
Confederation assembled there in 1864. This print was
discovered by Reg Porter in the trunk of John Hunter Duvar in
the cellar of Spring Park House along with GH67. This explains
the significant moisture damage to the photograph.

Government House Historical Imnage Catalogue

68a.
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68a. This alternate version of GH68 in the Public Archives of
Canada (PAC-C1271) is not as damaged as the PARO
original, but also crops out key architectural features from the
edges of the image, such as the dentilated entablature on the
veranda. The figures, however, are much easier to identify.




Government House circa 1860 with lawn roller

GH 69

Date of Original
Medium

Dimensions
Artist/Photographer
Source

Accession Number
Inscription

Circa 1860
Black and white
photograph
25.7x20.5 cm
unknown

PARO, Sterling
Collection

2301 item 261
none

Description

A photograph of the South front of
Government House, showing a group of
four people standing on the lawn (likely
Lt. Gov. George Dundas and party). No
shutters are visible on the windows. The
winter porch is still installed. Also visible
is a large lawn roller in the foreground.
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Notes

This photo, one of the earliest extant
photo of Government House, shows how
the building looked shortly after the
visit of the Prince of Wales. It contains
extremely important information about
the exterior of the house around 1860.
The original plank cladding had been
removed and replaced with shingling in
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1856, four years before the visit of the Prince of Wales. It has
been placed in chronological order after GH66, GH67, and
GH68 because of the absence of shutters on the first floor
windows. These were present in photos before and during the
visit of the Prince of Wales in August 1860, and were likely
taken down in the early autumn for winter storage once the hot
summer sun was no longer an issue. Note the continuing
presence of the winter porch, which had by now become a
permanent part of the building.
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69a.
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69a. A detail of GH69 showing the upper sections of the
Tuscan Doric columns supporting the verandas and of the lonic
capitals supporting the south portico. These details were of the
greatest use when Trevor Gillingwater recreated the lonic
capitals to be used with the South portico round columns. The
South portico columns were replaced by A. F. Schwerd Mfg. Co
in Pittsburgh PA in 1987 and the 26 veranda columns in 1994,
Note also the small chimney extending from the south roof —
likely venting a small Franklin stove in the room directly
beneath it. (See GH101)




Government House from the Southeast

GH 70

Date of Original
Medium
Dimensions
Artist/Photographer
Source

Accession Number
Inscription

c.Winter 1860
Photograph

7.2x6 cm

Henry Cundall
PARO, PEIMHF
Collection, DuVernet
Album
HF.74.27.3.26

Signed “Cundall” in Ir.

Description

A winter scene of the South and East
fronts of Government House taken from
the vicinity of the old site of West End
House (today Beaconsfield). Note how
the trees around the house have grown in
the past ten years.

Notes

This photo comes from an album kept by
Miss Helen Bayfield, the daughter of
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Admiral and Fanny Bayfield, who lived
in Charlottetown at the time of
Governor George Dundas (1859-
1868). The album is important to the
study of Charlottetown’s topography
and the personalities of the day.

The name ‘DuVernet’ comes from a

family to whom the Bayfield papers
passed and who made a gift of
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them to the provincial archives. The album, also referred to as
the Helen Bayfield collection, is the source for photos GH70 to
GH73, GH74, GH76, and GH78 to GH79. This makes it one of
the most important sources for information on Government
House immediately prior to the Charlottetown Conference.

Henry Cundall, to whom many of the DuVernet photos are
attributed, was very active as an amateur photographer in
Charlottetown and said to be a friend of the Bayfield family.
Though some of these attributions are tenuous, it is certain that
Cundall took at least some of the photos in the album.
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Dating for this photograph can be narrowed by reference to
Henry Cundall’s diary of July 20 1859. This reads “AM went
to Gov't grounds assisting Munroe taking photograph of house
etc.” Prior to this date, he seems to have been relatively
uninterested in Government House, making winter 1859-1860
the earliest likely period in which the photo could have been
taken. While the season makes it impossible for this to be the
actual photo referred to in his diary, we can infer a date
shortly thereafter.




Government House with Three Ladies and Man in Top Hat

GH 71

Date of Original
Medium
Dimensions
Artist/Photographer

Source

Accession Number
Inscription

1862
Photograph
7x6.5 cm
Possibly Henry
Cundall

PARO, PEIMHF,
DuVernet Album
HF.74.27.3.23
“Government
House /P.E.
Island/1862” Not

signed.

Description

An early view of the south front of
Government House, taken in a formal
frontal manner near noonday. Three
ladies are visible standing on the front
step and a gentleman is seen leaning on
one of the Tuscan Doric columns
supporting the east veranda.
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Notes

In the original Government House
Album the persons in the photograph
are identified as Lady Georgiana
Fane, Mary Dundas, Mrs. Clifford and a
man with a top hat. Given Governor
Dundas’s love of photography — which
accounts for the wealth of images
dating from his time in office — he is
probably the figure leaning against the
veranda.
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GH 72

Government House, West Front

Date of Original
Medium
Dimensions
Artist/Photographer

Source

Accession Number
Inscription

c.1862

Photograph

12x9.5 cm

Perhaps Henry
Cundall

PARO, PEIMHF,
DuVernet Collection
HF.74.27.3.67
None
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Description

A photograph of the West front of
Government House, focusing on the
doors leading outside from the Ante
Room (now the ‘Music Room’) and the
West veranda.

Notes

This is an unusual photo in that it seems
to have been taken to document
Government House’s architecture rather
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than to supply a picture for the
photographic albums of the time. It
clearly shows various details, including
two sets of steps coming off the
veranda — one at the southwest corner
of the veranda and another outside the
Ante Room. Also visible are the French
doors that lead into the Ante Room,
today the Music Room. (See GH19 &
GHA41)




Government House Obscured by Tree

GH 73

Date of Original
Medium
Dimensions
Artist/Photographer

Source

Accession Number
Inscription

c.1862

Photograph

9.4x7.2 cm

Possibly Henry
Cundall

PARO, PEIMF,
DuVernet Album
HF.74.27.3, page 94
None

Description

A poorly focused photo of Government
House with a mysterious structure, likely a
tent, near the Southwest corner of the
veranda. A small tree obscures the South
portico. A small chimney protrudes from
the south roof. (See GH101)

Notes

The camera with which this photo was
taken was of poor quality with a lens
that, when focused in the centre, left the
peripheries of the photo blurred. Note
also the fent pitched by the west
veranda — a sign of Lt. Gov. Dundas
playing the true Victorian ‘action man’.
(See GH79)
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G H 74 East Veranda at Government House with Dundas Group

Date of Original c.1862
Medium Photograph
Dimensions 6.1x6.7 cm
Artist/Photographer  Possibly Henry
Cundall
Source PARO, PEIMHF,

DuVernet Album
Accession Number HF.74.27.3.24
Inscription “M.E.D, Lady Fane,
GD/Mrs. Clifford /Mr.
Thomson/Mr.
Bowan/62 Regt.

Description

A group photo of Governor George Dundas’s party
on the East veranda, beside the East portico, taken
from under the Southeast corner of the veranda.
The party includes three men and three women.

Notes

Six identified persons posed near the portico of the
East veranda. In the inscription, M.E.D. stands for
Mrs. Mary (Mrs.) Dundas, and GD for Lieutenant
Governor George Dundas. Lady Fane is seated
and George Dundas is on the right. Note the
paired Tuscan Doric columns supporting the East
portico and the winter porch attached to the East
entrance.
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Three Figures on East Veranda of Government House

GH 75

Date of Original
Medium
Dimensions
Artist/Photographer

Source
Accession Number
Inscription

c.1862
photograph
6.1x6.7 cm
Possibly Henry
Cundall

PARO
HF.74.27.3.61

b. ‘G.D. Mrs. E.D. H.B.

Description

A sepia coloured group photo of three
figures on veranda beside the East
portico, taken from under the Southeast
corner of the veranda. The east
entrance’s winter porch is also visible.
Significant foxing has taken place near
the bottom of the photo.
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Notes

A photo in the same vein as GH74,
GH75 includes three sets of initials
under the figures, identifying them as
Governor George Dundas, Lady Mary
E. Dundas, and Helen Bayfield. Note
the doubled columns of the east
portico.
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GH 76

Government House (view from Christian’s Bridge)

Date of Original
Medium
Dimensions
Artist/Photographer
Source

Accession Number
Inscription

c.Winter 1862
photograph

14x10.5 cm

Perhaps Henry Cundall
PARO, PEIMHF, DuVernet
Album

HF.74.27.3.237
“Government House”
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Description

A winter photograph of the approach to
Government House, taken from
Christian’'s Bridge over Government
Pond. The east front of the House is
obscured by growth on the north side of
the lane. The guardhouse is neatly
defined by the snow on the ground and
its roof.
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Notes

This is the earliest known winter view of
the entrance to Government House. By
this time the grove on the East side of the
House has grown dramatically, especially
the birch trees behind the guardhouse.
This is identifiable as the second
guardhouse, built for the visit of the
Prince of Wales in 1860 and destroyed
by fire in 1871.




Note how this guardhouse is built in the style of the pre-1860
main house, with wide Greek Revival corner pilasters and
grooved horizontal plank cladding that imitates banded
rustication. Since the house had been shingled, one would
expect the same treatment on the guardhouse. The second
guardhouse was therefore most likely built before the
renovations that altered the exterior of main House by
replacing its plank cladding with shingles. When the third
guardhouse was built in 1873, it too was shingled and — like the
House it guarded — had few identifiably Greek Revival
characteristics left.

76a.
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Note also the decorative gateway with acorn or pineapple
finials, first installed in 1838. The proximity of GH76, GH78,
and GH79 in the DuVernet album — and the similar snow
conditions in each photo — make it possible that they were
taken around the same time, though the chronological
disorganization of the album throws doubt on the issue.

76a. Detail of GH76 showing the second guardhouse, with its
corner boards and grooved plank cladding.
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GH 77

Government House (view from Christian’s Bridge) Il

Date of Original c.1862
Medium Photograph on
cardboard
Dimensions 5.6 x 6.7 cm
Artist/Photographer  Artist Unknown
Source Confederation Centre
Art Gallery
Accession Number CAG H-1896
Inscription b. Government House

Government House Historical Imnage Catalogue

Description

A winter view of the approach to
Government House, taken from
Christian’s Bridge over Government
Pond. The east front of the House is
obscured by growth on the north side of
the lane. The guardhouse and the fence
enclosing the Farm on the west side of
government pond are also visible.
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Notes

This photo is a near replica of GH76,
though in sepia tones and with
additional information on the fence
running north from the back of the
guardhouse. It lacks the plume of
smoke rising from the guardhouse
chimney. The identical snowmelt on the
guardhouse roof and Christian’s Bridge,
as well as the similar stacks of firewood
indicate that both were taken the same
negative.




Government House (in winter)

GH 78

Date of Original
Medium
Dimensions
Artist/Photographer

Source

Accession Number
Inscription

c.1862

photograph
10.5x16.3 cm
Perhaps Henry
Cundall

PARO, PEIMHF,
DuVernet Album
HF.74.27.3.238
“Government House”

Description

Photograph of the obscured South and
East fronts of Government House, taken
from the harbour ice below the bank and
shoreline fence.

Notes

Although the snow melt pattern on the
roof of Government House matches
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that in GH76 and GH77, this is too
tenuous a clue for a reliable dating.
The nearness of GH78 to GH76 in the
DuVernet album might also indicate that
they were taken around the same time.
However, given the album’s general
disorganisation, this too is a weak basis
for a firm conclusion.
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GH 79

Snowshoeing at Government House in Winter

Date of Original c.Winter 1862
Medium photograph
Dimensions 19.5x13 cm
Artist/Photographer  Perhaps Henry
Cundall
Source PARO, PEIMHF,

DuVernet Album
Accession Number HF.74.27.3.241
Inscription “Govt House”
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Description

Winter photo of the Southwest corner of
Government House, taken from the
Southeast lawns. In the centre is
Governor George Dundas with
snowshoes on the front lawn of
Government House, Charlottetown.
Another unidentified person is seated in
the snow on lawn, heavily bundled.
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Notes

GH79 is a fine example of a mid-
century ‘action photo’, with Lt. Gov.
Dundas playing the part of the
Victorian ‘adventurer. Note the absence
of shutters on the second floor during
the winter months.  The shutters in
earlier photos (e.g. GH66) were
designed to keep out the sun rather
than the winter weather.




79a. Detail of GH79 showing the condition of the shingles,
which were replaced during the second Coles premiership in
1856. Note also the absence of shutters on the second floor —
a wintertime habit at Government House in the middle of the

19% century that proved very helpful in establishing a
chronological sequence for GH66 to GH69. See also GH78,
which appears to have shutters on only the two easternmost
windows on the first floor of the south front.

79a.
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GH 80

West Street from Government Farm

Date of Original c. 1864
Medium photograph
Dimensions 9.5x12 cm

Artist/Photographer Unkown

Source PARO

Accession Number HF74.27.3.240

Inscription Inscribed with ‘The
Mayor’s’ and
‘R.C.Cathedral’
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Description
A view of West End House, taken from
the front lawn of Government House.
Saint Dunstan's Cathedral is visible in
background.

Notes
West End House was then the residence
of Charlottetown Mayor T. H. Haviland,
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and has been given an attractive
veranda since the Beazley sketchbook
watercolours of 1852. (see GH49)
Note also the old wooden spire of St.
Dunstan’s cathedral.  This prominent
feature of Charlottetown’s skyline is
frequently used to locate images taken
between 1850 and 1896.




Meeting of the Fathers of Confederation

GH 81

Date of Original
Medium
Dimensions
Artist/Photographer
Source

Accession Number
Inscription

September 1864
Photograph
20.2x29.4 cm.
George P Roberts
LAC

C-000733

Recto ‘Convention at
Charlottetown, Prince
Edward Island.
Photographed by
G.P. Roberts, St.John,
N.B.’

Description
A photo of the delegates to the
Charlottetown Conference standing in
front of the South portico of Government
House. The winter porch and rain gutters
are visible.

Notes

Beyond its value as a memento of this
historic occasion, GH81 is also important
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to the study of the exterior of
Government House, which had its
original plank cladding removed by
1856, four years before the Prince of
Woales’ visit in August 1860. Since these
shingles were still on the building in the
1990s when a complete restoration of
the verandas was undertaken, this
photo was of vital use in recreating the
proportions of all the veranda elements
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which had been removed in the 1870s. An example of the
plank cladding used to sheath the building originally can be
seen on the west face of the northwest wing of the building. The
Tuscan Doric columns and dentilated entablature supporting the
veranda are an original element of Isaac Smith’s design. By
1864 the wide corner pilasters had been removed. Note the
absence of second floor shutters. These were likely taken down
every year in the early autumn following the end of the summer
sun. (See GH46 and GH79)
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The vital unit used as a measurement in the recent restorations
the various architectural elements of the verandas was the
4.5in. section of the original shingles that had been exposed to
the weather. See Reg Porter’s Planning Restorations of the East
Portico and Verandas at Government House (1994). A sample
of these shingles — the only ones placed on the building from
1860 to 1995 — has been preserved in the Reg Porter
Collection.




Prince Arthur at Government House

GH 82

Date of Original
Medium
Dimensions
Artist/Photographer
Source

Accession Number
Inscription

23 August 1869
Photograph

9.3x5.7 in

C Lewis

PARO,

HF.74.27.6.19

Reverse of card mount
“"Government
House/Monday August
30" 1869” and “C.
Lewis/Charlottetown /P
EL”

Description

A grainy view of dignitaries standing
under the South portico of Government
House. Two militiamen flank the south
pediment’s supporting columns.  Eight
figures are distributed across the portico.

Notes

This photograph was taken during the
visit of HRH Prince Arthur to P.E.l in
August 1869. HRH, the third son of
Queen Victoria, stayed at Government
House for two days and stands to the
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right of the door. The lady and
gentleman next to the Prince are
probably Governor Sir Robert Hodgson
(1868-70, 74-79) and his wife. The
sentries standing on the podia are
members of the  Charlottetown
Provisional Battalion of Infantry, acting
as guard of honour under Major Henry
Beer, later mayor of Charlottetown.
The Tuscan Doric columns seen
supporting the verandas were replaced
by square posts after 1873, along with
the veranda’s dentilated entablature.
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GH 83

Government House — Square Veranda Posts

Date of Original
Medium
Dimensions
Artist/Photographer
Source

Accession Number
Inscription

1873-1884
Photograph
14x22.5 cm
unknown

PARO
2301/167

“The Government

House, Charlottetown,
P.E.L”
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Description

A half-tone photograph of the South and
East fronts of Government House, taken
from the Southeast lawns. Note the
square posts now supporting the
verandas.

Notes

As the Ball plan of Government Farm
and the new city park (GH9) marks the
end of one era in the history of
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Government Farm, so does this image
mark a vital change in the appearance
of the House. The original plank
cladding and corner pilasters were
replaced around 1856, and now the
Tuscan Doric columns on the verandas
have been replaced by square posts
that reflect the Italianate style popular
in the 1870’s. The east portico has been
removed completely. As well the
entablature of the verandas has




been replaced by a much simpler one, without the elegant
dentilated architrave of its predecessor. The South portico’s
ionic columns remain round. It is interesting to note that these
veranda posts were installed with no consideration about the
clash of styles between lonic columns and plain posts. Perhaps it
was known at the time that soon the great lonic columns
supporting the South portico would themselves be replaced with
square posts around 1884. (See GH84 & GH85)

83a.
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Note also the small chimney still protruding from the point
where the south portico inserts into the roof. (See GH69, GH73,
and GH101)

83a. Detail of GH83 showing the new square posts supporting

the veranda, the lonic capitals supporting the portico and the
mysterious small chimney on the south roof.
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GH 84

Government House with Square Posts

Date of Original
Medium
Dimensions
Artist/Photographer
Source

Accession Number
Inscription

1873-1884
Photograph

11x7.5 cm

C. Lewis

PARO, PEIMHF
Collection
3466/74.27.6.4
“Government House -
Il — Monday August
30" 1869
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Description

A grainy photograph of the South and
East fronts of Government House, taken
from the Southeast lawns. Note the
square posts now supporting the
verandas and the round ionic columns
that continue to support the South portico.

Notes
The inscription is wrong both for the
date and the time of year — referring
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as it does to the visit of Prince Arthur to
PEl in 1869. Not only does the season
in the picture not match that during
which HRH Prince Arthur visited, but the
verandas are now supported by square
posts — a development that dates this
image to the years after 1873. (See
GH83a) The dark trim around the
windows and doors indicates a date
closer to 1884.




View of Christian’s Bridge and Road Leading to Government House

GH 85

Date of Original

Medium
Dimensions
Artist/Photographer
Source

Accession Number
Inscription

Post 1873
(Construction of third
guardhouse.)
Photograph

4.5x7.7 in

Sterling

PARO, Sterling
Collection

2301/ 66

On reverse “Bridge at
government pond
looking west”

Description

A view of the approach to Government
House from Kent Street, including
Christian’s Bridge, the guardhouse and
the gateway. The bridge is undergoing
repairs and a horse and cart stand in the
gates.

Notes

The guardhouse in this image is the third

to be built on the site, the second

having burned down in 1871. This

iteration had a much shallower covered
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porch, a less pitched rear extension,
and lacks the wide corner pilasters and
grooved plank  siding of its
predecessor. This image usefully
recreates the scene painted by George
Ackerman in GH59, except for the tall
breastwork that follows the shoreline.
This may have been present to minimize
erosion or demarcate the boundaries of
the City Park as laid out in Ball’s 1873
map (See GH9).
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GH 86

Government House, circa 1884

Date of Original
Medium
Dimensions
Artist/Photographer
Source

Accession Number
Inscription

August 1884
Photograph
11.5x15.5 cm
Unknown

PARO

HF72.18.16
“Governor Haviland

and Carrie Aug.
1894”
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Description

View of the South front of Government
House, taken from the southeast lawns. A
man and woman (Likely Gov. and Mrs.
Haviland sit under the South portico.
Windows and doors are trimmed in dark
paint.

Notes
Note that square posts that have now
replaced the lonic Columns that formerly
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supported the South portico, and dark
trim that has been added to the
building’s window and doorframes. The
inscription, which reads “1894”, cannot
be correct. Gov. Haviland served from
1879-1884. It is likely that 1894 is a
transcription error in the original
Government House Album. This pushes
back the date when the house went from
stark white to trim accents — perhaps
dark green or black.




Charlottetown Tennis Club and Toboggan Slide

GH 87

Date of Original
Medium
Dimensions
Artist/Photographer
Source

Accession Number
Inscription

1884

Photograph

12x19 cm

C. Lewis

PARO
2320/101-5-1
Charlottetown Tennis
Club and toboggan
slide, 1884

Description

A view of The Charlottetown Tennis Club
taken in front of the toboggan slide,
likely in Victoria Park.

Notes

This image is interesting insofar as it
gives us a photographic record of a
toboggan slide similar to - and
significantly larger than — the older
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slide illustrated in GH57. The
supposition that this photo was taken in
Victoria Park — and that the toboggan
slide is an updated version of the one
seen in GH57 — is supported by the
fact that the Charlottetown Tennis Club
has its clubhouse, and played its
matches, in the Park. It is likely that the
photo was taken nearby.
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Another version of this photo is labelled ‘Micmac tennis club’
(Acc2320/101-8) and indicates that it was taken in Victoria
Park.
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87a.
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87a. A photo of the Charlottetown Tennis Clubhouse in Victoria

Park around 1894.

(PARO, H.B. Sterling Fonds, Acc3218/4




Government House Avenue

GH 88

Date of Original
Medium
Dimensions
Artist/Photographer
Source

Accession Number
Inscription

c.1890-1906
Photograph

12x16.5 cm

Mitchell

PARO, PEIMHF Mitchell
Collection
3466/HF.72.66.11.3.2
none

Description

A side view of the south portico from the
bottom of the lane to Government House,
including an electrical and telephone
utility pole in centre shot and the plank
walkway to the House. The south portico
of Government House is seen in profile,
illustrating its depth. A bicycle sits on the
veranda.
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Notes

Note the square posts now supporting all
verandas and porticos. Note also the as-
yet unpaved lane leading to Government
House, flanked on its south side by the
now familiar plank walkway. By 1885
Charlottetown had the beginnings of
both telephone and electrical services,
run overhead, as seen above, on two
wires. Note the absence of any lamp on
the utility pole, unlike the later GH9O0.
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GH 89

Entrance to Government House

Date of Original
Medium
Dimensions
Artist/Photographer
Source

Accession Number
Inscription

1894
Photograph
12x19 cm

H.B. Sterling
PARO, Sterling
Collection
3218/50
1894

Government House Historical Imnage Catalogue

Description

A view of the approaches to
Government House from Kent Street,
including  Christian’s  Bridge. The
guardhouse, the fences, and the acorn
finials on the gateposts are in good
repair. Twin ufility wires run to the
House.
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Notes

Note the standing object opposite the
guardhouse and slightly behind the
gate. This has been tentatively
identified as a gas lamp. Note also the
two overhead wires that now run up the
lane to Government House. (see GH88)
The guardhouse is in its final form with
shingle cladding, looking a little worse
for wear. It would be taken down
sometime between 1900 and 1908.




Entrance to Government House, possibly 1894

GH 90

Date of Original
Medium
Dimensions
Artist/Photographer
Source

Accession Number
Inscription

1894

Halftone

12x19 cm

H.B. Sterling

PARO, Sterling
Collection

3218/53
“Government House,
Charlottetown PEI”

Description

A view of the lane to Government House,
with the driveway almost completely
enclosed by mature trees. A pole stands
in the central foreground and the plank
walkway from Kent Street is clearly
visible.
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Notes

The plank walkway for pedestrians
arriving from Kent Street is in good
repair. It is also visible in Ackerman’s
1877 watercolour (GH59) and in photos
from the early 1870s (GH85). Note the
street lamp and utility pole on the right
side of the lane. This photo also appears
in a tourist booklet entitled Prince Edward
Island  lllustrated, published by The
Examiner in 1897.
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G H 9 ] Approach to Government House in Winter

Description Notes
’[\’A‘“:ﬁf Original ;-h1895 . Snowy winter view of the approach to Note the tall fence that has been built
otogra .
Di;;:r:ions ]2x]gc: Government House from Kent Street, along the waterfront. This may be an
Artist/Photographer  Sterling clearly showing the guardhouse, a very anti-erosion measure or may mark the
Source Zﬁﬁeoc;ii‘nef“”g snowy Christian’s Bridge, Government new boundary of Government House
Accession Number 3218/182 House’s  telephone and  electrical farm before the construction of the new
Inscription None connections, and the gaslight tentatively shore road leading to Victoria Park.
identified in GH89. (See GH9, GH92)
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The Park Roadway Construction

GH 92

Date of Original 1896-7

Medium Photograph

Dimensions 10x16.5 cm

Artist/Photographer  C Lewis

Source Reg Porter Collection

Accession Number None

Inscription “From a photo by C.
Lewis/The Park
Roadway/Taken
shortly before
completion.”

Description
A view of the shore in front of
Government House during the

construction of the shore road around
Victoria Park in 1896-7. Government
House is heavily obscured by trees. A
high fence marks the property.
Beaconsfield is visible in the back right.

135

Notes

Victoria Park, with ready access from
Kent Street, is finally being realised.
This road, set aside in the Ball survey
of 1873, was created at the expense
of the headlands below Government
House and Farm. The eastern half of
the Roadway was opened on
Victoria’s Diamond Jubilee on July 22,
1897. This image also appears in
Prince Edward Island Illustrated, printed
by from The Examiner that year.
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GH 93

Military Parade, Victoria Park Roadway

Date of Original c.1897
Medium Photograph
Dimensions 12x19 cm
Artist/Photographer  H.B. Sterling
Source PARO
Accession Number 3218/195
Inscription None

Government House Historical Imnage Catalogue

Description

A view of the newly-completed eastern
section of the Victoria Park Roadway,
stretching from Kent Street to Fort
Edward. A military parade is marching
west towards the battery, with onlookers
on the harbourside boardwalk and the
broad terrace adjacent to the high fence
of the Government Farm.
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Notes

This image likely dates from the
opening of the eastern section of the
Park Roadway on July 22, 1897 — the
occasion of Queen Victoria’s diamond
jubilee. Note that the Park Roadway
was as yet ungravelled, and would
remain so until 1925.




The New Park Road, circa 1899-1900

GH 94

Date of Original
Medium
Dimensions
Artist/Photographer
Source

Accession Number
Inscription

c.1900

Halftone photograph
19.5x24 cm
Craswell Studios
PARO

HF.83. GC 5.13

“Courtesy Craswell
Studio”

Description

A view of the junction between the old
lane from Kent Street to Government
House and the new Park Roadway. Also
visible are the third guardhouse, the
gaslight at the gate, the electricity and
telephone wires running to the House,
and the high fence separating the
property from the road.
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Notes

Note the twinned utility wires running to
the House, the gas lamp inside the
gates, and the high fence marking the
post-Confederation  boundaries  of
Government Farm — first identified in
Ball's 1873 map of the planned City
Park (GH9). A gaggle of young lads is
lounging near Government Pond. No
trees have yet been planted beside the
roadway. (See GH95)
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GH 95

Entrance to Government House |

Date of Original c.1903-1905

Medium Photographic Print

Dimensions 12.5x18 cm

Artist/Photographer ~ W.S. Louson

Source Confederation Centre
Art Gallery

Accession Number CM92.9

Inscription “Entrance to the

Government House”

Government House Historical Imnage Catalogue

Description

A view of the gates, guardhouse and
laneway to Government House. The
eastern section of the Park Roadway
extends along the waterfront. The stone
retaining wall around Government Pond
is visible, as is a row of saplings planted
along the north side of the Roadway.
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Notes

This image appears in Charlottetown —
the beautiful city of Prince Edward
Island, published by James Bayne Co.
(c.1905). The gaslight has disappeared,
and a lonely utility pole can be seen
just inside the gates. The electrical and
telephone wires are rendered nearly
invisible by their narrowness and by the
absence of snow or contrast to highlight
them.




Entrance to Government House |l

GH 96

Date of Original
Medium
Dimensions
Artist/Photographer
Source

Accession Number
Inscription

c.1903-1905

Colour Postcard
Digital Print

W.S. Louson
Confederation Centre
Art Gallery

CM80.3

“Entrance to
Government House,
Charlottetown PEI”

Description

A colourized view of the gates,
guardhouse and laneway to Government
House. The eastern section of the Park
Roadway extends along the waterfront.
The stone retaining wall around
Government Pond is visible, as is a row
of saplings planted along the north side
of the Roadway.
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Notes

This image is available online in the
PEIMHF Postcard archive as
‘Government House 3’. Also see GH95,
on which this postcard is based.
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GH 97

Park Roadway, Charlottetown

Date of Original
Medium
Dimensions
Artist/Photographer
Source

Accession Number
Inscription

c.1903-1905
Photographic Print
12.5x18 cm

W.S. Louson
Confederation Centre
Art Gallery

CM80.3

“Park Roadway,
Charlottetown”

Government House Historical Imnage Catalogue

Description

A view up the North and West rivers
from the raised battery at Fort Edward.
The western section of the Park Roadway
runs along the right and centre, with
numerous figures lounging between the
roadway and the seawall, including two
men with a bicycle.
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Notes

This image appears in The Garden of
the Gulf: PEl and its Handsome Capital
Charlottetown, published by Carter and
Co. (1905). The western section of the
Park Roadway was completed around
1904 and remained ungravelled until
1925. This photo was likely taken on
the same day as GH98, which looks
east from the same vantage point.




Fort Edward and the Dogs of War

GH 98

Date of Original
Medium
Dimensions
Artist/Photographer
Source

Accession Number
Inscription

c.1903-1905
Photographic Print
12.5x18 cm

W.S. Louson
Confederation Centre
Art Gallery

CM80.3

“Fort Edward and the
Dogs of War”

Description

A view looking east toward Government
House from Fort Edward with soldiers
marching and a small crowd assembled
near the cannons. One of the spires of
the third St. Dunstan’s Basilica rises from
the cityscape at the extreme right.
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Notes

This image appears in The Garden of
the Gulf: PEl and its Handsome Capital
Charlottetown, published by Carter and
Co. (1905). By this time, both the
eastern and western sections of the
Park Roadway are complete, though
ungravelled. This photo was likely taken
on the same day as GH97, which looks
west from the same vantage point.
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GH 99

The Three Sisters, Victoria Park

Government House Historical Imnage Catalogue

Date of Original c.1903-1905

Medium Photographic Print

Dimensions 12.5x18 cm

Artist/Photographer ~ W.S. Louson

Source Confederation Centre
Art Gallery

Accession Number CM80.3

Inscription “Park Roadway,

Charlottetown”

Description

A view of three birch trees in Victoria Park with a
park bench obscured in the central background.
Other than the name of the ‘Three Sisters’, there is
little to indicate the position of these trees within the
Park.

Notes

This image appears in The Garden of the Gulf: PEI
and its Handsome Capital Charlottetown, published by
Carter and Co. (1905). The Three Sisters appear to
have been a common natural reference point in the
Park in their day, much as Dead Man’s Pond is
today. Note the traditional park bench.
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Scene in Victoria Park, Charlottetown

GH 100

Date of Original
Medium
Dimensions
Artist/Photographer
Source

Accession Number
Inscription

c.1903-1905
Photographic Print
12.5x18 cm

W.S. Louson
Confederation Centre
Art Gallery

CM92.9

“Scene in Victoria
Park, Charlottetown”

Description

A view of Victoria Park, likely near the
present-day  intersection  that sits
between the tennis courts, Memorial
Field, the playground, and the western
Park Roadway.
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Notes

This image appears in The Garden of
the Gulf: PEl and its Handsome Capital
Charlottetown, published by Carter and
Co. (1905).
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GH 101

Government House with horse and carriage

Date of Original
Medium
Dimensions
Artist/Photographer
Source

Accession Number
Inscription

1905

Photograph
24.2x19.1 cm
Unknown

PARO, CCCC
2320/65-8
“Government House
at the time of the visit

of Governor General
Gray”
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Description

A view of the South front of Government
House taken from the southeast lawns.
A carriage is parked out front and
people are seated and standing on the
eastern veranda. Windows and doors
are trimmed in dark paint.

Notes

If the inscription accurately places this
photo in the period from 1904 to 1911,
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we can see how Government House was
painted in the Edwardian period — with
dark trim around windows and door
frames. This is first seen in G88, dating
to the mid-1880s. Window boxes with
flowers have also been added — turn of
the century decorating choice. It
appears as if a small chimney has been
inserted in the roof at the point where
the pediment inserts into the main roof.




(See GH73 & GH83) It may have been used to vent a Franklin
stove in the room immediately beneath, often used by Lt.
Governors as a private study and almost certainly cold and
drafty in the winter. (See also GH69 & GH71) Though the
winter porch is still the square original, something resembling a
giant flower box has been placed atop it. This, like the
flowerboxes outside the first floor windows, are a specifically
Edwardian addition — dating to the first decade of the twentieth
century. They disappear from images of the House around

101a.

145

1912, along with the dark trim around the windows and
doors. At about the same time, the old square porch — dating

to the 1830s — is replaced with a peaked porch crowned with

a pediment. (See GH110) Governor General Gray visited the
Island in 1905.

101a. Detail of GH101 showing the dark trim around windows
and the winter porch, a flowerbox on the first floor, and the
large flowerbox placed atop the winter porch itself. This is
very useful when attempting to date contemporaneous images.
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GH 102

Government House with cows grazing in the yard

Date of Original c.1905

Medium Photograph

Dimensions 8x13.3 cm

Artist/Photographer  Unknown

Source PARO

Accession Number HF74.90.1

Inscription Government House
with Cows Grazing in
the Yard

Government House Historical Imnage Catalogue

Description

A view of the south front of Government
House with cows grazing in the front
yard. Flower boxes sit outside the first
floor windows and dark trim surrounds
the windows and veranda edge.

Notes

Note the dark window and door trim,
the flower boxes outside the
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first floor windows, and the large
flowerbox on top of the winter porch.
Dark trim is visible on images of
Government House from ¢.1885 to
c.1912. The flowerboxes were a
specifically Edwardian feature, making
an appearance in  GH101 and
disappearing again after the
renovations shown in GH109.




Government House, circa 1905

GH 103

Date of Original
Medium

Artist/Photographer
Source

Accession Number
Inscription

c.1905

Postcard, Internet —
McCord Museum site
Unknown

McCord Museum
None

Government House,
Charlottetown,
PEI/103,632 J.V.

Description

A colourized photograph showing the
South front of Government House, taken
from the South lawns. Printer’s note on
lower right and location in upper right.
Windows and doors trimmed in colour
and winter porch with small fanlight.
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Notes

Note the window and door trim, and the
squared winter porch as seen in images
since the earliest photos of the building.
(See GH66, GH67) This is the last image
of the old winter porch, which was
replaced around 1912.
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GH 104

Park Roadway, c. 1905

Date of Original c.1905

Medium Photograph
Artist/Photographer  Unknown

Source Reg Porter Collection
Accession Number None

Inscription None
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Description

A view of the new park roadway running
westward toward Fort Edward from
beside Beaconsfield. A man leans
against the harbourside fence as a
figure walks along the boardwalk in the
middle distance. The high fence of
Government House stretches along the
right side of the image.
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Notes

Note the high fences around
Beaconsfield and Government House,
the man leaning on the railing at the
start of the Park Roadway, and the
single tree visible on the extreme right.
The latter helps to date the image, in
conjunction with GH105. Note also the
small saplings planted along the north
side of the Roadway, first seen in
GH95.




Park Roadway and Entrance to Government House in Winter

GH 105

Date of Original
Medium
Artist/Photographer
Source

Accession Number
Inscription

c.1905-1908
Halftone Photograph
Unknown

Reg Porter Collection
None

None

Description

A winter view of Government House and
the Park Roadway, including the
guardhouse, utility wires, and an
obscured view of the House.

Notes

Note the third guardhouse, still present to
the right of the gates to Government
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House. This was removed after 1900
and before 1908. Note also the snow
depth on the Park Roadway. The
seawall railing of has only one of three
rails showing. Using the fence and man
in GH104 as a reference, this indicates
shoreline snowdrifts at least two feet
deep.
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GH 106

Aerial view, entrance to Victoria Park, circa 1908

Date of Original
Medium
Dimensions
Artist/Photographer
Source

Accession Number
Inscription

c.1908

Coloured postcard
10.5x16.5 cm
Unknown

PARO

3003/18

“Entrance to Victoria

Park, Charlottetown,
P. E. Island.”
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Description

A colourized view down the Park
Roadway, westward to Ft. Edward. A
fence girds the grounds of Beaconsfield
and a neat pathway traces the original
path of today’s boardwalk.
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Notes

This view of Victoria Park and the Park
Roadway was taken from the roof of
old West Kent School. The owner of
Beaconsfield, Henry Cundall, built a
high fence that hid his gardens from the
road. The construction of the Roadway
took the focus from the entrance to
Government House, drawing eye to
Fort Edward and the fields of what had
been the Government Farm.




Entrance to Victoria Park, circa 1908

GH 107

Date of Original
Medium
Artist/Photographer
Source

Accession Number
Inscription

c.1908

Coloured postcard
Unknown

Historic PEI (online)
None

“Entrance to Victoria

Park, Charlottetown,
P.E.L”

Description

A colourized postcard photo of the
entrance to Victoria Park, Government
Pond, and the gates to Government
House. Two boys stand at the edge of
Government Pond. The gates to
Government House appear dilapidated,
and a single utility pole rises behind
them. The eastern section of the Park
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Roadway is complete and the saplings
first seen in GH95 appear to have
grown slightly.

Notes

The third guardhouse is invisible either
because it had been dismantled prior to
this photo or because it was set back
farther from the lane.
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G H ] 08 Unguarded Gates of Government House

. Description Notes

,?A:':i:;‘o"gmql :,zl;mph A view of the gates to Government House This image is telling insofar as it is the
Dimensions 18x23 cm around 1912. The gates stand ajar and the first to show the gates without a
:;:j:ﬁpmmgmphef ‘::';’gwn guardhouse — until now situated to the right guardhouse of any kind. This dates the
Accession Number HF.73.198.13 of the main gates — is now missing. Utility picture to around 1912, when the
Inscription Entrance to Governor’s wires run up to the House and the dam at guardhouse was likely dismantled as

plouse = Charloftetown, the base of Government Pond is clearly part of a wider, post-Edwardian

visible. renovation. (See GH109)
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Government House Renovation

GH 109

Date of Original 1912

Medium Photograph
Dimensions 12x17 em
Artist/Photographer Wm. Notman & Sons

Source McCord Museum
Accession Number VIEW 4828
Inscription “Musee McCord

Museum” in ur

Description

A photograph of Government House under
renovation around 1912. Window frames
lean against the wall on the veranda and a
workman leans out of the leftmost window
of the first floor in the south portico, along
with a sheet. The first floor flower boxes
are empty, and several have been
removed. Piles of wood sit on both sides of
the veranda. The winter porch is missing and
the original south entrance is exposed.
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Notes
This fascinating picture gives a rare
glimpse of Government House under

renovation. It likely records the changes
that introduced the new, pedimented
winter porches and removed the dark trim
from around the building’s windows and
doors. This photo is very important insofar
as it is the only pictorial evidence we have
of the 1912 renovations.
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109a. Detail of GH109 showing renovations underway in the south
portico, including the removal and eventual replacement of the old
winter porches, which had been permanently attached to the
building since around 1860. (see GH66) The original structure

was replaced by a pointed and pedimented porch
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109a.
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that stood for eighty years until it, in turn, was replaced by a
reconstruction of its square predecessor. (See GH110) Note the
exposed details of the original south entrance, with its small
fanlight and pilasters. The window frames seen leaning against
the House on either side of the door may be for the new winter
porch.




Government House, 1912-1917

GH 110

Date of Original
Medium
Artist/Photographer
Source

Accession Number
Inscription

1912-1917

Coloured postcard
Unknown

PEIMHF Postcard Archive
None

Top left “Government

House, Charlottetown,
P.E.L”

Description

A colourized view the South and East
fronts of Government House, taken from
the southeast lawns. Windows and doors
sport white trim, and a new pedimented
winter porch has replaced its old, square
predecessor.
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Notes

This picture shows that the old, square
winter porch of the South portico has
been replaced by a new one with a
pediment and side windows. The
photograph was used often in the
period as a postcard and in tourist
publications. It was printed in great
numbers and is still easy to find today.
GH110b is one example.
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110b. Another print of GH110, with different colouration. (from

110a. Detail of new winter porch under the South portico, built
around 1912, (See GH109) Note how its corner pilasters and the Reg Porter Collection)

triangular pediment echo the shape and proportions of the

South portico.

110a.

110b.
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Entrance to Governor’s House

GHI111

Date of Original 1912-1923
Medium Photograph
Dimensions 17x11.8 cm
Artist/Photographer  Unknown

Source PARO

Accession Number HF.70.1778.3.3.6

Inscription “Entrance to
Governor’s House —
Charlottetown — PEI”

Description

A view out of the gates of Government
House, showing Beaconsfield and its high
fence through the gap in the trees. The
third guardhouse is now missing and new
cement and iron gates with finials and
wrought iron fencing stand at the foot of
the dirt drive.

157

Notes

It is difficult to date this image
accurately. The new gates likely date
from the 1917 renovations. If so, this
image must date from soon after, as the
finials on the gateposts are in much
better shape than those in GH116-
GH118. The Park Roadway remains
ungravelled, also indicating a date
before 1925.
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GH 112

The Rena Maclean Memorial Hospital for Soldiers

Date of Original
Medium
Artist/Photographer
Source

Accession Number
Inscription

1919-20

Coloured postcard
Unknown

Vintage Charlottetown
(online)

None

On the top, “The Rena
Maclean Memorial
Hospital for Soldiers”
and on the bottom,
“Charlottetown, P.E.L.”
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Description

Colourized view of the South and East
fronts of the Rena Maclean Memorial
Hospital, with the South and East fronts
of Government House obscured in the
background. The Hospital’s shingled
exterior is clearly visible.

Notes

As World War | entered its fourth
bloody year, there was an immediate
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need for convalescent homes and re-
education  centres  for  returning
veterans. The Lt. Governor of the day,
Augustine  MacDonald (1915-1919),
offered his home to the province and it
was accepted. Starting in 1917, a
large structure was built next to the
House. New construction appeared on
both sides of Government House (See
GH 16).




The last of the Government House gardens probably
disappeared around the same time. Indeed, at a later date in
this period every part of the grounds was sub-let for potato
growing. Government House became the administrative centre
of this medical complex. During this time many changes were
made to the interior of the House. Most were temporary: to
make the spaces more useful to medical and administrative
staff. The Rena Maclean Memorial Hospital was named for
nursing sister Rena Maclean, who was killed in 1918 when the
Llandovery Castle was torpedoed by a German submarine.

159

With the end of the war there was no longer a need for a
convalescent home, so the Province made the complex into an
agricultural and technical school. This served students until 1925.
Thereafter began a long decline in the fortunes of Government
House until restoration work for the return of the Governor
began in 1930. See GH123 for an illustration of the
reconstructed House. For a more detailed account of this period
in Government House’s history see The Island Magazine, No.24,
Fall/Winter 1988.
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GH113

Government House and the Rena MacLean Memorial Hospital |

Date of Original c.1918
Medium Photograph
Dimensions 24.2x17.5 ecm
Artist/Photographer  Bayer Studio

Source PARO
Accession Number 3466/HF77.34.1b
Inscription Rev. ‘Mrs. Mitchell’s

Picture’

Government House Historical Imnage Catalogue

Description

View of the south front of both Government
House and the Rena Maclean Memorial
Hospital for convalescing soldiers. The west
fronts of both buildings are visible in profile.
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Notes

Note the post-1912, pedimented winter
porch on Government House. It was
fortunate the roofline of the hospital
building mirrored - however
imperfectly — the pedimented front of
the main House. See GH114b and
GH114c for details of the hospital’s
interior and north face.




Government House and the Rena MacLean Memorial Hospital Il

GH 114

Date of Original 1919

Medium Photograph
Dimensions 4x5 in
Artist/Photographer  Unknown

Source PARO

Accession Number 4746/1
Inscription l. ‘M.C. Hosp. & M.T.

2/3-19

Description
View of the south and east fronts of the
Rena Maclean Memorial Hospital and

Government House from the Park
Roadway. The grounds are separated
from the Park Roadway by a simple post
fence. The corridor connecting the
buildings is visible. Two ufility wires cut
across the top of the image.

Notes

Note that the high fence that separated
the grounds of Government House from
the Park Roadway has been taken
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down. Only the simple bollard and
chain fence seen in GH102 now
demarcates the grounds of the Rena
Maclean Hospital from Victoria Park.
Note the sparse tree cover following
the construction of the Hospital building.

114a. Detail of GH114 showing the
front of the hospital building and the
southeast corner of the main House,
which served as the hospital offices.
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114a.

Note the enclosed hallway that connected the two structures
prior to the Hospital’s demolition in 1932. (See GH17).

114b. A halftone view of the north face of the hospital building
on p.1 of The Guardian of 16 November 1918.

114c. A halftone of the interior of the main hospital ward,
from the same source as GH114b.

114b.




Government House and Provincial Technical School

GH 115

Date of Original
Medium
Dimensions
Artist/Photographer
Source

Accession Number
Inscription

1921

Halftone Photograph
24.5x15.7 cm
Unknown

PARO

2755/64

none

Description

View of the south front of Government
House and the main outbuilding
associated with the WWI soldiers’
convalescent hospital that occupied the
site from 1917 to 1920 and the post-
WWI Prince Edward Island Agricultural
and Technical School that took over the
buildings from 1920 to 1925.

163

Notes

This image was published in the
Calendar of the Agricultural and
Technical School, 1921. Shadows
indicate that it was taken in the early
morning. Note the enclosed hallway
connecting Government House and the
school building.
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G H ] ] 6 Path to Government House, PEI

Date of Original c.1919-1925
Medium Postcard
Dimensions 16x10.5 cm
Artist/Photographer  Unknown
Source PARO
Accession Number  4378/1
Inscription b. ‘Path to

Government House,
Charlottetown, P.E.I.’

Description

View of the footpath to Government House, including the
cement and wrought iron gates that stood from 1919 to 1932,
and a small section of the Park Roadway. The bollard and
chain fence extends in both directions from the gate, enclosing
the property.

Notes

Dating for this photo is based on the construction of the main
gates — built between 1912 and the renovations that saw the
construction of the Rena Maclean Memorial Hospital in 1917 —
and the fact that the Park Roadway remains ungravelled. This
changed in 1925, providing a fairly narrow window in which
this postcard image could have been taken. Note the gates —
now cement and wrought iron. The addition of wrought iron
fencing likely dates from the 1917 renovation. (See GH108 &
GH111) Note also that the photographer has taken the image
in such a way as to hide the hospital /school building behind the
copse of trees at the bottom of the north side of the lane. It is
interesting that postcard books from this era tend to either
exclude Government House entirely or photograph it in such a
way as to hide the hospital /school building.

Government House Historical Imnage Catalogue 164




Government Pond, Charlottetown PEI

GH 117

Date of Original
Medium
Dimensions
Artist/Photographer
Source

Accession Number
Inscription

c. 1919-1925
Postcard

10.5x15 cm
Unknown

PARO

4378/2
Government Pond,

Charlottetown, P.E.I.

Description

View of the south end of Government
Pond and the gates to Government
House and the PEl Agricultural and
Technical School are visible, as is the
tidal barrier separating the pond from
the Harbour. The Park Roadway is on
the extreme left of the photo. The
bollard and chain fence marking the
grounds of Government House is visible
between the gates and the right edge
of the postcard.
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Notes

Note that the line of saplings along the
north side of the Park Roadway (See
GH94, GH104, and GH107) have
grown into young trees. The lawns
appear well maintained. The
hospital /school building is just visible
through the trees, unlike GH108. The
hospital building was converted to
school use in 1920.
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GH 118

Gates of Government House and the Closed Technical School

Date of Original July 23 1927
Medium Photograph
Dimensions 24.2x17.5 ecm
Artist/Photographer  Bayer Studio

Source PARO
Accession Number HF74.225.57
Inscription Back ‘July 23 1927°

Description

A grainy photograph of the lane to
Government House, just showing the PEI
Agricultural and  Technical  School
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through the trees. The south portico of
the main House is visible in profile in the
background. Cement and iron gates
stand closed and locked at the bottom
of the drive.

Notes

Following the closure of the Rena
MaclLean Memorial Hospital, the Prince
Edward Island  Agricultural  and
Technical School served Island students
from 1920 to 1925. After only a few

166

years of vacancy, the cement gates
and the property are showing
significant signs of neglect — evidence
of the House’s decline following the
departure of the Lieutenant Governor
and the closure of the PEl Agricultural
and Technical School. Note the
damaged finial on the leftmost
pedestal (See GH111), the unkempt
grass edges on along the lane and
footpath, and the untrimmed growth
throughout.




Charlottetown Aerial Oblique - 1928

GH119

Date of Original
Medium

Dimensions
Artist/Photographer

Source
Accession Number
Inscription

1928

Photograph

Negative

Department of Interior,
Canada

LAC

PA-048201

K.A.7.28 /Charlottetown
PEI

Description

An aerial view of Charlottetown, looking
northeast, showing Government House
and the PEl Agricultural and Technical
School building in the lower left.

Notes

This aerial photo is useful insofar as it
shows the condition of Government House
and its various post = WWI outbuildings
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in the decade after the Great War.
Note the orientation and dimensions of
the long, rectangular structure directly
east of the House — originally the
Rena Maclean Memorial Hospital and
later the Provincial Technical School.

119a. This tiny detail of GH119 shows
Government House and several of its
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outbuildings in 1928. The former hospital and school building is
clearly visible to the right of the main House. The nurses’ house
is situated to the left.

119a.

119b.
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119b. A postcard showing Victoria Park between 1917 and
1930, with Government House with its 1917 additions visible

in

the

background.

(courtesy:

Vintage

Charlottetown)




Gateway to Government House

GH 120

Date of Original
Medium
Dimensions
Artist/Photographer
Source

Accession Number
Inscription

c.1935

Postcard

Digital Copy
Craswell Studios
PEIMHF Postcard
Archive

None

“Government House,

Charlottetown, Prince
Edward Island.”

Description

A view through the gates of Government
House, looking up the drive to the main
building. Art Deco gateposts stand at the
base of the drive, topped with
decorative lamps but without any
wooden or iron panels.
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Notes

Note how the construction and
demolition of the hospital/school
complex has significantly thinned the
foliage present on either side of the
lane to Government House. Note also
the Art Deco gateposts, the outermost
of which are identical to the pillars that
today support a bench at the southern
end of Government Pond.
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GH 121

Colourized Gateway to Government House

Date of Original c.1935

Medium Colourised
Photograph

Dimensions 19.5x25 cm.

Artist/Photographer  Craswell Studios

Source PEIMHF

Accession Number None

Inscription “Government House,

Charlottetown, P.E.
Island, Craswell”
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Description

A colourised view through the gates of
Government House, looking up the drive
to the main building. Cement Art Deco
gates stand at the base of the drive,
without any wooden or iron panels.
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Notes

GH121 is essentially identical to
GH120. The attribution of GH121 to
Craswell Studios either indicates that
they were responsible for GH120 as
well or that they undertook the complex
job of colourization.




Charlottetown Aerial - 1935 G H ] 2 2

Date of Original 1935

Medium Photograph

Dimensions Digital Print

Artist/Photographer Natural Resources
Canada

Source PEl Government
Aerial Photographs
Collection

Accession Number None

Inscription I. 1. ‘A-5089-70’

Description

An aerial view of Charlottetown, including
Government House and Victoria Park in the lower
right, the downtown core in centre, and the
racetrack in the upper left. High contrast blurs
much of the waterfront.

Notes

This image is useful insofar as it establishes the
condition of the grounds of Government House and
Victoria Park shortly after the renovation of 1931-
1932 and the house’s return to vice-regal use. Note
the brand new Prince Edward Island Hospital, which
opened at 5 Brighton Road in 1934. (see GH122aq)
It was previously located at 31 Kensington Road.
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122a. Detail of GH122 showing Government House shortly
after the demolition of the Prince Edward Island Agricultural
and Technical School. Note the relatively open area to the left
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122a.
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of Government House where the hospital /school building once
stood. Special thanks to Reg Porter for enhancing this tiny
detail.




Government House, Renovated

GH 123

Date of Original
Medium
Dimensions
Artist/Photographer
Source

Accession Number
Inscription

c.1936

Halftone photograph
13.2x8 cm

Unknown

Benjamin Bremner,
Tales of Abegweit,
Irwin Printing Co. Ltd.
[1936], page 30.
None

“Government House —
At Present”

Description

A photograph of the South and East
fronts of Government House. A marquee
tent stands to the extreme left
background, in the re-established formal
gardens. Some replanting of trees is
taking place on the South lawns.
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Notes

In this very clear photograph it is
possible to see a resplendent
Government House after the expensive
renovations of 1931-32. Shutters,
believed to be ornamental rather than
functional, are on all the facade
windows. This is the version of
Government House that would survive
relatively unchanged into the early
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1970’s, when the newly-formed Government House Committee
began its work of interior design and furnishings, as well as the
gradual restoration of porticoes and verandas that would carry
on into the 1990’s. For the most part, the shingles are the ones
placed there in 1856. The square posts in lieu of columns are
the ones erected in the 1870’s. By this time, the grounds were
restored and the formal gardens re-established. Note the
comfortable veranda furniture and the as-yet immature shrubs
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on the front lawn. No Lieutenant Governor lived at Government
House from 1917 to 1932, when Charles Dalton was able to
move in again after a public expenditure of $20, 678.65.

Note that Tales of Abegweit by Benjamin Bremner is no longer
in print. It is available through the PEl Public Library (971.7
BRE) as a non-circulation reference book.




Government House, Charlottetown, P.E. Island, Canada

GH 124

Date of Original
Medium
Dimensions
Artist/Photographer
Source

Accession Number
Inscription

c.1936

Coloured postcard
Digital Print
Unknown

PEIMHF Postcard
Archive

None

“Government House,
Charlottetown P.E.
Island, Canada”

Description

Colourized postcard based on GHI123,
in which the window shutters and roof
are shown in bright green. The east front
still lacks its original portico.
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Notes

Note the removal of the marquee
from the extreme left of the postcard.
— an excellent example of photo
editing in the days before Photoshop.
The card is available online though
the PEIMHF Postcard Archive as
‘Government House 2'.
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GH 125

Government House, circa 1936

Date of Original
Medium
Dimensions
Artist/Photographer
Source

Accession Number
Inscription

c.1936

Halftone Photograph
6.2x10.3 cm
Unknown

Edward Hart, The
Story of Old
Abegweit, A Sketch of
PEI History

None

“Government House,
Charlottetown”
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Description

A very grainy reproduction of the South
and East fronts of Government House
following the renovations of 1931-32,
taken through the trees from the East
end of the South lawns.
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Notes

Edward Hart’s The Story of OlId
Abegweit is now out of print. It is
available though the PEI Public Library
(271.7 HAR) as a non-circulation
reference book.




Formal Gardens Before WWII |

GH 126

Date of Original 1938-1939
Medium Photograph
Dimensions 7.5x12 cm
Artist/Photographer Unknown

Source Reg Porter Collection
Accession Number None

On verso “Lily Pond,
Government House”

Inscription

Description

A clear view of a water feature in the
formal gardens, looking west. Two
caravan tents are visible in the
background and one man is standing,
looking to camera. Two ladies sit on a
bench on the left. Shells surround the
spraying fountain. An arbour and chairs
is visible in front of the tents.
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Notes

Sources indicate that the garden has
been made ready for the Royal Visit of
1939. Note the ornamentation on the
fountain compared with the simpler
post-war version seen in GH142. The
tents are a mystery, though they may
be for a reception. Note the arbour
and chairs, the same as those seen in
GH127.
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GH 127

Formal Gardens Before WWII Il

Date of Original
Medium
Dimensions
Artist/Photographer
Source

Accession Number
Inscription

1938-1939
Photograph

7.5x12 cm

Unknown

Reg Porter Collection

None
On back “Lily Pond,
Government House”
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Description

A clear view of three figures sitting in the
formal gardens of Government House. A
girl sits in a chair on the left, a woman
stands under an arbour in the centre, and
another woman sits in a chair on the
right. All is in bloom.

Notes
This image dates to the same period —
possibly to the same day — asGH126
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Sources identify the figures as: |
Stephanie LeClair, c. Mary Martin
(grandmother of Stephanie), r. Ida
Martin LeClair (mother of Stephanie).
The photo was most likely taken looking
roughly south. The scene is shown from
another angle in GH126. These are
probably the same figures as those in
the background of the preceding
image.




HM King George VI & Queen Elizabeth

GH 128

Date of Original
Medium
Dimensions
Artist/Photographer
Source

Accession Number
Inscription

June 1939
Newspaper halftone
50.8x60.5 cm
Unknown

The Guardian, 17
June 1939, p.1
None

None

Description

A photograph of HM King George VI
and Queen Elizabeth walking away from
the west front of Government House.
Ranks of Boy Scouts stand on the left and
dignitaries on the right, with a string of
lights extending from the house towards
the camera. Queen Elizabeth walks
under an umbrella. The King is smiling.
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Notes

Note the square veranda posts and the
glossy underside of the veranda roof —
newly painted for their majesties’ visit.
Otherwise, little information about the
House or its grounds can be gleaned
from this photo.
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GH 129

Government House, circa 1945

Date of Original c.1945

Medium Photograph
Dimensions 50.8x60.5 cm
Artist/Photographer  Craswell Studios
Source Mersereau Collection
Accession Number None

Inscription “Government House

Charlottetown Prince
Edward Island,
Craswell Studio
Charlottetown PEI”
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Description

A colourized photograph showing the
South front of Government House, taken
from the East end of the South lawns. A
coat of arms now occupies the South
pediment.
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Notes

The House looks much the same as in the
1930s photos except for the addition
of a PEl coat-of-arms to the South
pediment around the time of the
Second World War. There has also
been considerable growth of the
various trees and shrubs planted a
decade and a half earlier.




Government House, circa 1945

GH 130

Date of Original c.1945

Medium Photograph
Artist/Photographer ~ Unknown

Source Reg Porter Collection
Accession Number None

Inscription None

Description

A grainy view showing the South front of
Government House, taken from the
Southwest lawns. A coat of arms occupies
the South pediment.

Notes

This image is from after the end of
World War |l, as evidenced by the
presence of electric lights (seeGH130a)
around the inner rim of
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the South pediment — an unthinkable
luxury during the wartime blackouts of
1939-1945. (See also GH129)

130a. Detail from GH130 showing the
sculpted coat of arms that was added
to the South pediment of Government
House during or shortly after the
Second World War. It shows the Prince
Edward Island coat of arms, flanked by
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a lion and unicorn and topped with a lion and crown. Below the
provincial motto (parva sub ingenti) is a ribbon reading “Prince
Edward Island”. This short-lived addition to the south pediment

was removed some time after 1945. It may have been in
place for VE and VJ celebrations only. At the moment, we
lack any photographic evidence of its fate.
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